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Win Hanverky Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are an
integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
international sports brands. We have two broad lines of
businesses, namely Manufacturing Business and Distribution and
Retail Business, with geographical markets spanning over
Europe, North America, Mainland China and Hong Kong etc. We
are the exclusive licensed distributor of Umbro Products in the
Greater China and the owner of the trademark “Diadora” in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.

The Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 6 September 2006.
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BI##E Financial Highlights

BERETERNKEN

BEt-A=t+-BLEE/
R+=ZA=+-H
For the year ended 31 December/
As at 31 December

Key Financial Information for the Last Five Years

“E-ZF ZEENF ZEENE —ZTtE ZEZERE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
BERE (FER) Financial Performance
(HK$000)
& Revenue 3,081,763 2,888,002 3,487,342 3,322,400 2,487,519
mERR Operating profit 110,986 133,208 75,447 400,123 352,967
BRATBHATRR Profit before income tax 117,293 137,584 79,216 410,219 360,805
EERF Profit for the year 72,801 107,015 26,774 334,694 283,420
ARABRESEA Profit attributable to equity
P& A holders of the Company 120,472 121,539 33,325 290,259 260,600
BEMRR (FER) Financial Position (HK$’000)
FRBEE Non-current assets 868,722 920,750 1,008,239 719,938 584,317
RBEE Current assets 1,950,941 1,740,662 1,768,929 1,896,482 1,364,808
RBAE Current liabilities 686,873 571,674 732,963 702,582 442,971
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,264,068 1,168,988 1,035,966 1,193,900 921,837
BEELE Total assets 2,819,663 2661412 2,777,168 2,616,420 1,949,125
EEAERRBER Total assets less
current liabilities 2,132,790 2,089,738  2,044205 1,913,838 1,506,154
BRER Total equity 2,127,568 2,087,643 2,029,194 1,901,098 1,372,147
BeRBEEEUR Cash and cash equivalents and
REHRBBE=M@A bank deposits with initial terms
ZRITER of over three months 782,840 674,065 363,272 580,280 567,387
BEESZ Operation Indicators
EFE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 24.2 274 28.3 32.2 34.7
F R E (%) Net profit margin (%) 2.4 3.7 0.8 10.1 11.4
BBEERELE (%) ™D Gearing ratio (%)Mete) 2.1 3.3 5.6 4.2 0.8
TEht = (fF) Current ratio (times) 2.8 3.0 2.4 2.7 3.1
FEUER 2 BES () Trade receivable sales
period (days) 67 68 81 7 70
REZBEH(R) Inventory sales period (days) 76 88 75 63 54
Btat - Note:
EEEELENRTEELHEBRUEES - Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total bank borrowings and total

KEEBEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

equity.
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FEHRE Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual
results of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010.

Stable Growth of Orders from Customers but
Challenging Inflation Cost

2010 was a challenging year. The western countries have
launched different levels of quantitative measures to stimulate
their economies after the financial crisis happened in 2008.
Although our major market of sportswear manufacturing, Europe,
is still struggling with their members’ internal financial problems,
orders from our major customers restore to grow. Except for two
slack months, our capacity of each existing production facility
was almost fully utilised during the year.

The continuing high gross domestic products growth in the PRC,
the government policies launched to stimulate domestic demand
and laws to protect labour interest, altogether created a very
turbulent labour market for Mainland China. Especially during the
second half of the year, catalyzed by the “consecutive labour
suicide events of an OEM giant”, the labour cost has increased
by more than 20% for our factories in Mainland China. Together
with a general inflation and the appreciation of RMB, our cost of
production has been pushed up which eroded our gross margin.
In the second half of the year, the labour supply was extremely
tensed, we could not reduce excessive workforce during the two
slack months with an expectation that we would not easily rehire
these workers when the peak season has come. Even the labour
cost has been increased by more than 20%, about 15% of the
skillful labour have resigned. Moreover, the local government has
enhanced the social security standard of labour and the minimum
salary level has been increased by the central government as
well. All of these events have increased our production cost and
affected the margin.

Looking ahead, with the order indication from our customers, we
are cautiously optimistic about the growth momentum in our core
sportswear products sales in 2011. Although the general inflation
and appreciation of RMB in the PRC are expected to be
continued, we can share certain inflated costs with our
customers. We will also pay particular attention to keep our
workforce in a stable status and to eliminate slack months by
planning better ahead with our major customers. We see more
reliable and profitable sales orders from local brands and we are

—2-BEEH
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looking for relatively lower labour costs areas to expand our
production capacities. Meanwhile, Guangxi, the PRC and
Vietnam are the targets for new manufacturing plants.

The inflated cost is not only impacting us strongly but even more
seriously to other factories with smaller size. It also provides us a
good opportunity for merger and acquisition as we have a very
strong financial position. During the year, we have successfully
acquired the Charmtech Group which is principally engaged in
manufacturing of golf and high-end fashion apparel. The
Charmtech Group has already contributed operating profit to the
Group starting in the second half of the year which proved that
the acquisition was successful and was beneficial to our
shareholders. Meanwhile apart from our core business growth in
sportswear manufacturing, we would take extra caution and
attention on other potential merger and acquisition should these
opportunities exist.

A More Solid Distribution and Retail Business

The overall sales of Distribution and Retail Business has
decreased by 16.7% to HK$447.0 million mainly attributable to
the unsatisfactory performance in the sales of Umbro Products. In
addition to the strong competitive sportswear market in Mainland
China, we have encountered a supply chain problem which
caused lost of sales orders of Umbro Products during the year. As
the brand owner has noticed the problem and committed to
mitigating it at their earliest possible, and in consideration of the
ending of excessive inventory situation for our distributors, we
expect the business is going to be breakeven or even profitable
in the coming years.

We own the trademark “Diadora” and we design, manufacture,
sell and distribute Diadora Products in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. Definitely Diadora distribution business will be our focus in
the coming years. During the year, we have put resources on
marketing and promotion. Mr. Huang Xiao Ming (“Mr. Huang”) is
our brand ambassador of Diadora Products. We have also
introduced a new casual wear product series, namely “Huang
Xiao Ming Series”, with the crossover between the brand
“Diadora” and the name of Mr. Huang, during the year which
drew attention from the public and enhanced the brand
awareness. In coming years, we will continue to invest by
providing unique and outstanding products to our customers. The
sportswear market in Mainland China is now very challenging and
competitive. Some of the top brands are facing slowdown in sales
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FEHRE Chairman’s Statement

growth. As far as “Diadora” is positioning as “Sport Fashion” with
low starting point, we believe we could still increase our shop
prints within the territory in accordance with our plan. During the
year we had opened 60 shops for Diadora Products. We were
experienced that the sales of Diadora Products were promising
and doing well since the last few months of the year. Therefore,
we believe that there are still rooms for good player with niche
and unique products.

Regarding the retail of multi-brand products, we recorded an
increase in sales revenue and an improvement of gross margin.
Benefiting from the continuous economic growth, the retail
markets in both Mainland China and Hong Kong were performing
well, especially during the second half of the year which
produced many opportunities for the Group’s retail business.
Further, the PRC government, having implemented a series of
measures in response to the global financial crisis, which pushed
forward the transformation of economic development and the
adjustment of economic structure, has sustained its good
momentum in economic growth, and has stimulated the local
demand of consumer products in the mainland. During the year,
the profitability of retail shops in Hong Kong has been
substantially improved. In Mainland China, we continued to work
closely with Umbro to push up the sales and improve shops’
profitability. Overall speaking, the loss of retail business has been
significantly reduced from HK$50.0 million in 2009 to HK$12.7
million in 2010, a reduction of 74.6%. We believe if this
momentum continue, our retail business will be profitable in the
coming one or two years.

Looking forward, we will continue to open more multi-brand
stores under the names of “Futbol Trend” and “Sport Corners”
in Hong Kong to capture a better scale for profitability. For the
mono-brand retailing in Mainland China, we will not only open
more shops for Umbro in the six regions of Mainland China and in
Hong Kong, as the above-mentioned, but will also open more
shops for “Diadora” and other brands that we think they can
leverage our retail workforce present in Mainland China. We are
now further considering the feasibility of establishing retail
channels selling multi-brand products in Mainland China in order
to capture the significant and huge spending powers of
consumers in this second largest economy of the world.

—2-BEEH
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our employees for their devotion and dedication that
overcome the hurdles during the year. | would also like to take
this opportunity to thank our shareholders and business partners
for their continuous supports and recognition of our aspiration
and strategies during the current difficult time period.

Looking forward in the coming year, we will make every effort to
increase our overall return, and will remain vigilant and adopt
prudent business strategies to fight fit with the aim of maximising
shareholders’ returns.

Ll Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2011
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4 #T - Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERALL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has recorded a
revenue of HK$3,081.8 million, which resumed to grow after the
economic crisis since 2008 (HK$2,888.0 million for the year
2009).

Gross profit amounted to HK$746.7 million, representing a
decrease of 5.7% year-on-year. Gross profit margin also reduced
from 27.4% in 2009 to 24.2% in 2010. The decrease in gross
profit was mainly resulted from the increase in labour costs and
other overhead costs for production under the Manufacturing
Business. In spite of the inflationary environment, management
has put much effort to control its operating and administrative
expenses. |In addition, a significant amount of impairment loss on
intangible asset related to “Diadora” trademark of HK$54.0
million (2009: HK$15.1 million related to goodwill) has been
charged to the consolidated income statement during the year. As
a result, the Group’s operating profit decreased from HK$133.2
million to HK$111.0 million during the year. Profit attributable to
the shareholders of the Company however maintained at
HK$120.5 million as compared with HK$121.5 million of last year.
Excluding such impairment loss on intangible assets in both
years, operating profit and profit attributable to the shareholders
of the Company would have been increased by 11.3% from
HK$148.3 million in 2009 to HK$165.0 million in 2010 and 11.9%
from HK$136.6 million in 2009 to HK$152.9 million in 2010,
respectively.

The Board has declared and paid the interim and special
dividends of HK2.4 cents and HK1.4 cents, respectively per
Share during the year. In consideration of the strong net cash
position and the continued cash inflow from operations, the Board
proposed the payment of a final dividend and a special dividend
of HK1.2 cents and HK1.8 cents, respectively per Share for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated manufacturer, distributor and retailer
for renowned international sports brands. The financial
performances of the two business segments, namely
“Manufacturing” and “Distribution and Retail” are summarised as

below.

—2-BEEH
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Manufacturing Business

The Group’s Manufacturing Business operates mainly on OEM
arrangement for international sports brands. Most of the Group’s
products are exported and sold to Europe and Mainland China.
The Group has a long history and a remarkable position in
sportswear garment manufacturing, and has established long-
term business relationship with its key customers. Therefore, the
Group has experienced a steady growth of sales orders from its
customers during the year. Although the operating environment
was difficult, overall Manufacturing Business recorded a growth in
sales revenue which increased by 10.6% from HK$2,387.6 million
to HK$2,639.6 million, accounting for 85.5% of the Group’s total
sales revenue as compared with 81.7% for last year.

In order to meet the demand of production orders, during the
year, the Group has filled in additional labour and the number of
workers has increased steadily for the Group’s Manufacturing
Business. The pay rates and the social security standard for
workers in Guangdong province, where the Group’s
manufacturing plants are mainly located at, have also been
increased which created pressure on the labour costs during the
year, particularly catalyzed by the “consecutive labour suicide
events of an OEM giant” which further pushed up the labour
costs. In the second half of the year, the labour supply was
extremely tensed, and the Group could not reduce the excessive
labour during the two slack months with an expectation that the
Group would not easily employ these workers again when the
peak season came. Maintaining skillful workers and the
sufficiency of labour force were challenging during the year.
Moreover, recent appreciation in RMB and general inflation in
Mainland China have also pushed up direct costs of production
and other manufacturing overheads. All the above reasons have
reduced the segmental gross profit margin from 25.2% to 22.0%

under Manufacturing Business.
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4 #T - Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Manufacturing Business (Continued)

Under the challenging and competitive operating environment,
management continued to tighten the operating cost of the
business, and to carry out various measures to maximise the
production and management efficiency. Despite management’s
continuous effort in cost control, operating profit margin
decreased slightly from 10.1% to 9.3% inevitably due to the loss
in gross profit margin as mentioned above. Management believes
that although the production and operating environment in
Mainland China is still challenging and competitive, and the
pressure from increasing costs of production will continue due to
the appreciation of RMB and general inflation in Mainland China,
with its remarkable position in sportswear garment
manufacturing, and with its existing forecast sales orders in
hands from its major customers, the Group is optimistic on the
growth potential of both revenue and operating profit in this

segment.

The Group’s Manufacturing Business also sought for merger and
acquisition during the year. The Group has entered into a sale
and purchase agreement in June 2010 for acquiring 75% equity
interest in Charmtech at a consideration of HK$33.8 million.
Further details of this acquisition have been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 June 2010.

The Charmtech Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing of
golf and high-end fashion apparel in Mainland China for sales in
the US, Europe and Asia. Management believes that the above
acquisition will broaden the Group’s product base and provide the
Group with an additional source of revenue. The Charmtech
Group started contributing sales revenue of HK$54.5 million to
the Group in the second half of the year.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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4 # - Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business

This segment includes the businesses of distribution of Umbro
Products through the T&S Group, distribution of Diadora Products
through the Winor Group and retail of multi-brand and mono-
brand products and distribution of sportswear products through
the Win Sports Group. Sales revenue of the segment decreased
by 16.7% from HK$536.5 million to HK$447.0 million,
representing 14.5% of the Group’s total sales revenue as
compared to 18.3% in 2009. Operating loss in this segment
increased from HK$107.4 million in 2009 to HK$135.4 million in
2010, which included the amount of HK$54.0 million for the
impairment loss on “Diadora” trademark (2009: HK$15.1 million
on goodwill). Excluding such impairment loss on intangible assets
in both years, operating loss would have been decreased by
11.8% from HK$92.3 million to HK$81.4 million. Further
discussion of the performance in each stream of this segment is
set out below:

Distribution of Umbro Products

The T&S Group possesses an exclusive right to distribute Umbro
Products in the Greater China region till 2020. During the year,
sales revenue and segmental gross profit from this business
decreased to HK$256.9 million and HK$81.1 million, respectively.
The T&S Group encountered supply chain problem with the brand
owner, which caused delays and cancellation of orders from
distributors placed to factories as authorised by the brand owner
due to their lack of production capacity. Further, the market
competition in the sportswear market in Mainland China,
especially in first and second tier cities, was still fierce which
gave pressure on sales performance of Umbro Products. As a
result, the T&S Group recorded a decrease in gross profit margin
to 31.6% during the year. The T&S Group continued to review
and terminate the business relationship with those distributors
with poor sales performance in order to strengthen the
distribution network and to face the challenge under the
competitive retail markets. In addition to the tight cost controls
implemented by management, operating loss has been reduced
to HK$28.3 million as compared with HK$37.2 million for the last
year. The above measures also encouraged the improvement of
the financial positions of the T&S Group, which was evidenced by
the reduction in inventory and trade receivables of the T&S Group
from HK$70.9 million and HK$47.5 million as at 31 December
2009 to HK$55.3 million and HK$31.9 million as at 31 December
2010, respectively.
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4 #T - Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Distribution of Umbro Products (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the T&S Group had a sales network
comprising approximately 90 Umbro product distributors
operating approximately 600 points-of-sales in the Greater China
region. The Win Sports Group is also one of the distributors
selling Umbro Products.

Distribution of Diadora Products

The Winor Group owns the trademark of “Diadora”’ in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau and hence has the respective right
to manufacture, sell and distribute Diadora Products. Under the
competitive retail market in Mainland China, the Winor Group
recorded sales revenue at HK$60.2 million with gross profit
margin at 36.4%, which was lower than our expectation.
Therefore, in addition to an annual trademark amortisation of
HK$8.9 million, a provision of impairment loss on the “Diadora”
trademark amounting HK$54.0 million has been made.

As at 31 December 2010, the Winor Group had a sales network
comprising approximately 40 Diadora product distributors
operating approximately 160 points-of-sales in Mainland China.
The Win Sports Group is also one of the distributors selling
Diadora Products, details of which are presented as below. The
Winor Group also self-managed 8 retail shops in Mainland China
and in Hong Kong.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Retail of Multi-brand Products

The Win Sports Group mainly operates sportswear retail business
selling Umbro Products and Diadora Products in Mainland China
and sportswear products of various brands in Hong Kong.
Compared with last year, sales revenue from this business
increased from HK$176.7 million to HK$180.1 million and gross
profit and its margin both improved from HK$50.0 million to
HK$59.7 million, and from 28.4% to 33.1%, respectively. Gross
profit and its margin were improved due to the relief from
overstocking situation, so that it was able to sell sportswear
products with higher profit margin during the year. A recent boom
in retail markets in both Mainland China and Hong Kong in the
last quarter of 2010 gave life and vitality to the sales of the Win
Sports Group. During the year, the profitability of retail shops in
Hong Kong has been substantially improved. In Mainland China,
the Group continued to work closely with the brand owner of
Umbro to push up its sales and improve its profitability. Further,
the Win Sports Group effectively controlled the operating cost in
this segment, and selling and administrative expenses have been
decreased by 21.0% during the year. Although the Win Sports
Group still made operating loss of HK$12.7 million during the
year, such loss has been substantially reduced by 74.6% which
was mainly attributable to the better-than-expected sales in the
second half of the year, improved profit margin, and the control of
operating and administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2010, the Win Sports Group had
approximately 80 mono-brand shops in Mainland China, majority
of which were selling Umbro Products and the remaining were
selling Diadora Products, and 9 self-managed retail shops in
Hong Kong, of which 3 were traded under the name of “Futbol
Trend’, 5 were under the name of “Sport Corners” and a mono-
brand shop for an international sports brand made up the rest.
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4 #T - Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

2010 was challenging so far for the Group although the stock
market and property market had been high-rocketing during the
year. As the customer orders and forecast under Manufacturing
Business for the year 2011 is still promising and the retail
markets in both Mainland China and in Hong Kong are still
turning better, the Group is optimistic about the prospect of its
business in coming years. Manufacturing Business will continue
to provide strong cash flow to the Group, while the loss of
Distribution and Retail Business will continue to reduce so that it
is time to target for expansion rather than for cost controls.

Manufacturing Business

Management expects that the sales revenue under the
Manufacturing Business will continue to grow as sales order
indication from customers are optimistic. The general inflation in
Mainland China is still the main concern to the manufacturers and
the local government has just announced the increase of
minimum wage rate of labour in Guangdong province effective in
March 2011.
manufacturers are forced to close down due to the continuous

It is expected that many small to medium size

high costs of production and this impact may alternatively secure
more production orders to those first tier manufacturers, such as
the Group which enjoy economies of scale in their productions.
What the Group requires to do is to secure and maintain the
sufficiency of labour force, give them competitive wages,
attractive insurance protection, good working environment, etc,
and provide training with a view to enhance their sense of
belonging and productivities. The Group will plan better ahead
with its major customers to minimise the labour cost impact
during the slack season. On the other hand, the Group is
expanding its production facilities in areas with relatively lower
labour costs and stable labour supply. Wuzhou in Guangxi
province and Vietnam are the Group’s targets for the new
production capacities. Tight controls in general and administrative
expenses are the continuing measures. The Group may also
collaborate with its customers to share the inflated production
costs.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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PROSPECTS (Continued)
Manufacturing Business (Continued)

In the following years, apart from the internal growth, the Group
will continue to look for new customers and may further explore
acquisition opportunities. As mentioned above, the Group entered
into an agreement to acquire the controlling interest in the
Charmtech Group which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of golf and high-end fashion apparel in Mainland
China for sales in the US, Europe and Asia. The acquisition of
Charmtech Group is proved to be successful. The Group will
actively seek for opportunity to acquire companies with similar
scale as the Charmtech Group, and with strong and competent
management and good customer bases. By doing so, the Group
could provide them sufficient financial support and buffer them
out their production costs during their slack seasons so that there

is a synergy effect, thus creating a win-win situation.

Distribution and Retail Business

The economic growth and government policy to encourage
personal spending have created opportunities to wholesales and
retail businesses in Mainland China and Hong Kong during the
year, but the competitions in these businesses in Mainland China
are still fierce. The Group still keeps a conservative mind when
running business in these markets, but expects challenges
continue to prevail them.

Distribution of Umbro Products

The market competition in the sportswear distribution market in
Mainland China, especially in the first and second tier cities, is
still fierce. The Group requires collaboration with the brand owner
to mitigate the supply chain problems caused by the brand owner.
Fortunately, the trend of decreasing operating loss has been
experienced after the relief of overstocking problem. The Group
will continue to proactively communicate and work with the brand
owner for solutions and restructuring in order to turnaround the
business, with the aim to make it become profitable and
beneficial again to our shareholders.
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4 #T - Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Distribution of Diadora Products

Management considers that as the sportswear wholesales and
distribution environment becomes very challenging and
competitive, the Group should run this business as if it were a
retailer, rather than as a wholesaler or distributor. In view of this,
the Group sets its strategies to develop “Diadora’ brand by
“Retail Driven” and positions the brand as “Sport Fashion”. The
Group will establish and directly manage some doors which
provide a showcase to those distributors, coaching them how to
become successful retailers and emphasizing the importance of
figures-management. All of the Group’s distributors will be
required to follow the Group’s policies on shop management and
image, and point-of-sales system should be installed in order to
capture the sales data and shop performance information on a
timely basis. Management believes that all of these measures will
assist the brand to succeed even under the tough and
competitive environment.

Retail of Multi-brand Products

Regarding the retail of multi-brand products, the Group will
continue to look for suitable and promising locations for multi-
brand doors under the names of “Futbol Trend’ and “Sport
Corners” in Hong Kong to capture a better scale for profitability.
For mono-brand retail in Mainland China, in addition to
establishing more points of sales for Umbro Products, the Group
will open more shops for Diadora Products and other brands with
potential and focus on developing second tier cities in Hunan,
Jiangxu and Guangxi provinces, on top of current presence in
Shanghai, Beijing and Guangdong province in Mainland China.
The Group is now looking for acquisition opportunities of other
brands and further considering the feasibility of establishing retail
channels selling multi-brand products in Mainland China in order
to capture the significant and huge spending powers of
consumers in these areas.

—2-BEEH
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FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cashflow and bank facilities. The Group maintained an
outstanding financial position during the year under review. As at
31 December 2010, it had cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months amounting to
HK$782.8 million (31 December 2009: HK$674.1 million). The
increase was mainly attributable to the cash generated from
operations. After the payment of interim and special dividends of
totaling HK$48.2 million and the proposed final and special
dividends of HK$38.1 million in aggregate, the Group still has
strong net cash position. A payment of special dividend would be
considered in forthcoming years should the Group continue to
maintain strong cash balances and have no better alternative for
the utilisation of these financial resources.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had bank borrowings
amounting to HK$45.1 million (31 December 2009: HK$68.2
million). The Group did not enter into any interest rate swap to
hedge against risks associated with interest rates. As at 31
December 2010, the Group still had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$309.7 million (31 December 2009: HK$371.5
million). The gearing ratio, being total bank borrowings divided by
total equity, as at 31 December 2010, was 2.1% (31 December
2009: 3.3%).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 15,000
2009: 14,400
employees). The Group remunerates employees based on their

employees (31 December approximately

performance, working experience and prevailing market
conditions. Other employee benefits include retirement benefits,

insurance, medical coverage and a share option scheme.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, bank deposit of HK$1.2 million was
pledged to secure banking facilities for the Group.
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4 #T - Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales and purchases were mostly denominated in
US Dollars and RMB. During the year, approximately 76.7% and
22.6% of sales were denominated in US Dollars and RMB,
respectively, whereas approximately 62.6%, 18.3% and 19.1% of
purchases were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and Hong Kong
Dollars, respectively. Further, as at 31 December 2010,
approximately 52.9%, 45.1% and 1.9% of cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and Hong Kong

Dollars, respectively.

The Group considered that the foreign currency exchange
exposure arising from the above transactions and cash balances
was minimal during the year on the ground that Hong Kong
dollars were pegged against US dollars and the recent pressure
from appreciation of RMB was manageable during the year.
Accordingly, the Group considered the use of any derivative
instruments to hedge against foreign currency exposure arising
from the above transactions and cash balances was not critical
and determined during the year under review.

—2-BEEH
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LI Kwok Tung Roy, aged 60, is our executive Director, our co-
founder and Chairman. He was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2005. Mr. Ll is the elder brother of Mr. LEE
Kwok Leung. Mr. LI is responsible for strategic planning and
overall management of our Group. Mr. LI has over 30 years of
experience in the apparel industry and handling client
relationship. Mr. LI is a committee member of the Chinese
People’'s Political Consultative Conference in He Yuan city,

Guangdong province of the PRC.

Mr. LI is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” in this annual report.

LAI Ching Ping, aged 60, is our executive Director, our co-founder,
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. He was appointed as
an executive Director in December 2005. Mr. LAl oversees the
merchandising functions including production and purchasing teams
within the Manufacturing Business of our Group and is also
responsible for the overall management of our Group. Mr. LAl has
over 30 years of experience in the apparel industry. Mr. LAl is a
committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Yun Fu city, Guangdong province of the PRC.

Mr. LAl is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” in this annual report.

CHEUNG Chi, aged 44, is our executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006 and is currently the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. CHEUNG is responsible for our overall
financial management, merger and acquisition and corporate
finance projects. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr. CHEUNG had
been the executive vice president and chief financial officer of
Aspire Holdings Ltd. which is a member of China Mobile
Communications Corporation. Mr. CHEUNG had also been the
chief financial officer of eBIS Co., Ltd., and the financial controller
of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior consultant of
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Arthur Andersen & Co. in which he was responsible for several
initial public offering projects. He has over 18 years of experience
in financial management. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Accountancy from the City Polytechnic of Hong
Kong and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1992 and 2004
respectively. Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant.

LEE Kwok Leung, aged 48, is our executive Director and Chief
Operation Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006 and is currently the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. LEE is the younger brother of Mr. LI Kwok
Tung Roy. Mr. LEE is responsible for the Group’s supply chain,
including product research and development, product costing,
raw material procurement, garment production, quality control,
logistic arrangement and technology implementation and
overseeing the fabric knitting and dyeing business of our Group.
Mr. LEE has been with us for over 20 years after his graduation
from the York University in 1987 with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN Kwong Fai, aged 64, is our independent non-executive
Director. Dr. CHAN joined us in April 2006. Dr. CHAN has been in
the academic field for over 30 years and is currently an Associate
Professor at the Department of Management and Marketing of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. CHAN is also an
author of several publications in the business management area.
Dr. CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor degree in Social Science in 1971 and obtained
his Master of Business Management from the University of
Adelaide and Doctor of Philosophy from the University of South
Australia in 1981 and 2004 respectively.

KWAN Kai Cheong, aged 61, is our independent non-executive
Director. He joined us in April 2006. Mr. KWAN is currently the
president of Morrison & Company Limited, a business
consultancy firm, and an independent non-executive director of
several listed companies in Hong Kong including Henderson
Sunlight Asset Management Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring
Limited and SPG Land (Holdings) Limited. He is also a non-
executive director of China Properties Group Limited and JF
Household Furnishings Limited, shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has since October 2010 become an
independent non-executive director of Galaxy Resources Limited,
a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

—2-BEEH
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Mr. KWAN previously worked for Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc. and was
the president for its Asia Pacific region. He was an independent
non-executive director of Hutchison Telecommunications
International Limited since August 2004 and resigned in May
2010 after its privatisation. He was until 20 May 2008 a non-
executive director of China Medical and Bio Science Limited
(provisional liquidators appointed in December 2008). He was
also previously an independent non-executive director of
Soundwill Holdings Limited until January 2011.

Mr. KWAN completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992.
He also holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from
the University of Singapore. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

MA Ka Chun, aged 59, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. MA joined us in June 2006. Mr. MA has been in the
apparel industry for over 20 years and is currently a director of
Fashionmark Holdings Limited, principally engaging in the
manufacture of apparels for some international fashion brands
with production bases in Zhuhai and Zhongshan, the PRC. Mr.
MA holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong.

WUN Kwang Vincent, aged 61, is our independent non-
executive Director. Mr. WUN joined us in April 2006. He is
currently the managing director of Pinefield Industries Ltd, a
manufacturer of wooden products. Mr. WUN obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Harvard University in
1979.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG Hiu Man, aged 44, is the managing director of our
Distribution Business for the brand “Umbro”. Mr. WONG joined us
in 1998 and became the group financial controller and was
promoted to be our managing director of our Distribution
Business in March 2007, overseeing the distribution business of
Umbro Products. Prior to joining us, he held various positions,
including assistant corporate relationship manager and assistant
division manager in the import/export department in HSBC in
Hong Kong for 5 years. He also worked for BP Chemicals Limited
in UK from 1990 to 1992. He was awarded a scholarship from the
Hong Kong Bank Foundation in 1986 to study for a Bachelor
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degree in Business Administration at the University of Bath in UK,
and in 1988, he was also granted the Arthur Andersen Prize for
Financial Management.

TAM Keung, aged 59, is the managing director of our Distribution
Business for the brand “Diadora” and has over 30 years of
experience in wholesale and retail industry. Mr. TAM joined us in
2003 as the sales director of our Distribution Business for the
brand “Umbro” and was promoted to be the managing director of
in June 2008
responsible for overseeing the distribution business of Diadora

Distribution Business for the brand “Diadora”

Products. Prior to joining us, Mr. TAM had been the sales and
merchandising manager of Isetan department store in Hong Kong
and the general merchandising manager of Robinson department
store in Singapore. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Chinese
Arts and Literature from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1976.

CHAN Yuk Lin, aged 43, is the managing director of our Retail
Business and has over 15 years of experience in retail industry.
Ms. CHAN joined us in July 2008 as the general manager and
was promoted to be the managing director of our Retail Business
in March 2011 overseeing the retail business in China and Hong
Kong. Prior to joining us, she had been the general manager of
Lafuma HK Limited, the division manager of retail merchandising
and the department manager of sourcing of Swire Resources
Limited, assistant section manager of China retail operations of
Texwood and Apple Limited. She obtained a Master degree in
Clothing (Marketing and Distribution) from the Manchester
Metropolitan University in UK in 1993.

LAM Choi Ha, aged 32, is our company secretary responsible for
handling the company secretarial, compliance and financial
affairs of the Group. Ms. LAM joined us in November 2005 and
was promoted to be the company secretary in September 2010.
Prior to joining us, Ms. LAM has worked in the accountancy
profession with PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. LAM obtained a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2001. Ms. LAM is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant.

—2-BEEH
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The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance into the management structure and
the internal control procedures of the Group so as to ensure that
all business activities of the Group and the decision making
process are properly regulated.

During the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the applicable code provisions and
most of the recommended best practices set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules save for the following deviation.

Code Provision E.1.3

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the listed
issuer should arrange for a notice to shareholders to be sent in
the case of annual general meetings at least 20 clear business
(the “AGM Notice Period
Due to overlooking of the AGM Notice Period

days before the meeting
Requirement”).
Requirement, the Company failed to send a notice to
shareholders in compliance with the AGM Notice Period
Requirement for the annual general meeting held on 26 April

2010.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code in the future, the
Company will take all reasonable measures to arrange the
schedule for the general meetings of the Company in a more
cautious way and will send the notice in respect of the annual
general meetings of the Company to its shareholders in
compliance with the AGM Notice Period Requirement.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, they all have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report.
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Board of Directors

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the
Board.

The Board is responsible for governing the Group and managing
the Shareholders. Its principal
responsibilities include the formulation of the Group’s business

assets entrusted by
strategies and management objectives, monitoring and
overseeing the performance of the Group, setting the Group’s
values and standards and ensuring a prudent and effective
framework of internal control is in place to enable risks to be
assessed and managed.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer and the management of the Group. The
delegated functions and work task are periodically reviewed.

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 23.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to
the business operation and development of the Group.

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their
duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the successful
performance of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. The
Chairman of the Board is Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. The Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. LAl Ching Ping. There is a clear
segregation between the Chairman’s responsibility for the
management of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility for the management of the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.

—2-BEEH
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Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function
of bringing independent judgment on the development,
performance and risk management of the Group. Each of the
Group’s independent non-executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of three years and subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

All of them have satisfied the independence criteria and the
Company confirmed that it has received an annual confirmation
from each of them pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors consider them to be independent.

Certain committees have been set up under the Board to
supervise the management and administrative functions of the
Group. They include:

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.
The Company’s emolument policy is to ensure that the remuneration
offered to employees including executive Directors and senior
management is based on skills, knowledge, responsibilities and
involvement in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages
are also determined by reference to the Company’s performance
and profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. The emolument policy for independent
non-executive Directors, mainly comprising directors’ fees, is subject
to an annual assessment with reference to the market standard.
Individual director and senior management would not be involved in
deciding their own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed, determined the remuneration packages for the
Directors. The remuneration of Directors comprises basic salary,
pensions and discretionary bonus. Details of the amount of
emoluments of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in note 25(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Dr. CHAN
Kwong Fai (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. It carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship with reference to the
selection guidelines which include appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and
personal skills. The Nomination Committee also considers
referrals and engagement of external recruitment professionals
when necessary and makes recommendations to the Board for
selection and approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
recommended the re-election of all the Directors to the Board for
approval.

Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. WUN
Kwang Vincent (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching
Ping and Mr. MA Ka Chun, two of whom are independent non-
executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 April 2006
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include
reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness of our
financial reporting processes, internal control systems and risk
management.

—2-BEEH
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee in 2010:

Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr.

review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
2010 consolidated financial statements and 2010 unaudited
interim consolidated financial information with a focus on
compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
other requirements in relation to financial reporting;

discussion with the external auditor and the management on
accounting policies and practices;

review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system covering financial, operational and compliance

controls and risk management functions;

consider the adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of staff of our Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and training programmes and budget;

approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

review of independence of the external auditor and
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

KWAN Kai

Cheong (Chairman), Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent, Dr. CHAN Kwong
Fai and Mr. MA Ka Chun, all being independent non-executive

Directors.
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Attendance of Meetings

The Board holds regular Board meetings,
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Remuneration

Committee meeting, Nomination Committee meeting and Audit

Committee meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses,

operations, development and conduct. All important issues are

discussed in a timely manner. The attendance record of each

Director at the aforesaid meetings is set out below:

BE-_Z-Zf+-A=+—-HL
FEEHE CEREESBENH

Number of meetings attended/

eligible to attend for the year ended

FHzES
EZgeE g8
Remuneration
Board Committee
EEpns Name of Director Meeting Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
ZEIREE Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy'? 4/4 11
REFHRE? Mr. LAI Ching Ping? 4/4 N/A
RELE Mr. CHEUNG Chi 4/4 N/A
TEREE Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 4/4 N/A
BUFHITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BR ¢ fE 8 £ 25 Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai2* 3/4 11
BRI LE Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong'® 4/4 11
BEREAES Mr. MA Ka Chun35 4/4 N/A
BIEN S Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent** 4/4 N/A
BaE Notes:
1. FHZEERE 1.  Members of Remuneration Committee
2. FHMZEEEXE 2. Chairman of Remuneration Committee
3. REZEERE 3. Members of Nomination Committee
4, REZEEIRE 4. Chairman of Nomination Committee
5. BERZEEHE 5.  Members of Audit Committee
6. BREEGEIR 6. Chairman of Audit Committee

31 December 2010

REZREE BHRZEES

S =

Nomination Audit

Committee  Committee

Meeting Meeting

Al N/A

1 N/A

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A 2/2

N/A 2/2

1 2/2

Al 2/2
—E-TEER
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Accountability and Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have
been adopted. The principal accounting policies, which have
been consistently applied to all the years, adopted for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s external auditor’s responsibility on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 49 to 50 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out

as follows:
FERT
Nature of services HK$’000
Audit services 3,200
Non-audit services (Note) 796
3,996

Note: Non-audit services include review of interim financial information,
certain agreed-upon procedures, limited assurance engagement
and taxation related services.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control
procedures and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system which includes financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The
Group’s internal control is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
fulfillment of business objective.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of, and is satisfied with, the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.
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EE2ME Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution
and retailing of garment products, including sportswear, golf and
high-end fashion apparel, active and outer wear, and related
accessories. Sales are primarily under an OEM arrangement to
customers in Europe, North America and Asia and distribution and
retail modes in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 53 of this
report.

The Board recommends a payment of a final dividend of HK1.2
cents and a special dividend of HK1.8 cents per Share for the
year ended 31 December 2010, subject to Shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
27 May 2011, payable to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Tuesday, 24 May 2011. The dividends will be paid on
or about Friday, 10 June 2011.

The Board has also declared an interim dividend and a special
dividend of HK2.4 cents and HK1.4 cents per Share, respectively,
for the six months ended 30 June 2010.

Annual General Meeting and Closure of Register of
Members

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 16
March 2011 in relation to the annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2010 (the “2010
Results Announcement”). It is stated in the 2010 Results
Announcement that the annual general meeting will be proposed
to be held on Tuesday, 26 April 2011 and the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 20 April 2011 to
Tuesday, 26 April 2011 (both days inclusive) during which no
transfer of Shares of the Company will be registered.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report

31



32

EEEHME Report of the Directors

HREFNZHERRBEAE  HRRBAFKX
EREFEN-_Z——FHA-t+tA(EH
H)BEEBNESILE4S1-483%EFEBL K
TEXRE6HRET -ARNREEHZH
ARAHNBROBEELFESLR-T——F
EA-+TWMB (EM-)E=-F——HAZ
TR (EHE) (BEEEWMA) BEEEH
B OAHBEAEAAGANROBPETIHE
TeoABINFEEREZ_E—ZTF+_-A
ST-HLEEFERBRERBIRENSE
¥ BRRBREENR-_ZE-——FRA-1+=H
(B ) THFOR=T2R8MERMDES
NHEREEREZERNREERDBF
BREEAESFBRERLT it AEB
EREFREBER28ESHERE T 261 o

f#

ARARAEERFANREEDFHE DA
HRNEHUBRRMFE21R AR EES5256
ENAHREEEHR -

ENANSICI 3w K

R-ZE-ZFE+ZA=1+—-H  A2FAH
DIRFREAGHEH734,100,0008 T - KE
BRAAFNRESEBFEEHN S HER
THIF21 0

LN

ARBRAZDFBEHNE G I BHRRM T
20°

KEEBEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Due to rescheduling of the annual general meeting, it is proposed
that the annual general meeting be rescheduled to be held on
Friday, 27 May 2011 at 2:00 p.m. at 6/F., Phase 6, Hong Kong
Spinners Industrial Building, 481-483 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. As a result of such rescheduling, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
24 May 2011 to Friday, 27 May 2011 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to the final dividend
and the special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
respectively, all transfers of Shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 23 May 2011.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 55 to 56 of this report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions to Shareholders amounted to HK$734.1 million.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Donation

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and
other donations totaling HK$0.9 million.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this
report.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year under review.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
Mr. LAl Ching Ping
Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

Mr. MA Ka Chun

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. LAl Ching Ping, Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr. LEE
Kwok Leung shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 23.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination
by either party giving not less than six months’ written notice.
Under the service contracts, each of the executive Directors is
entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus in respect
of each complete financial year of the Group as the Board may
approve.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors does not enter
into any service agreements with the Company but has a fixed
term of office for three years and is subject to termination by
either party giving not less than three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time
during the financial year.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company (if any) in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which any such director or chief executive has taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company

HARAF

EZzEI

gl 4= Percentage of

EEHE g4 Number interest in

Name of Directors Capacity of Shares the Company*

FEMREE ZEEEEES 743,769,967 58.64%
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy Interest in a controlled corporation (Mt&E1)
(Note 1)

REEEE BERERA 4,186,000 0.33%
Mr. LAI Ching Ping Beneficial owner (MtEE2)
(Note 2)

RELEE BERERA 10,650,000 0.84%
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Beneficial owner (B F£3)
(Note 3)

ZERBREE BERERA 2,000,000 0.16%
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung Beneficial owner (Mt &£ 4)
(Note 4)

* TLIREBE-_E-THF+-A=
‘|’ — B E # 17 1,268,400,0008% A% 17 5t
=)

*  The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2010.
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(b) ARARBEE (ERREHRH

Directors’ Disclosure of Interests (Continued)

(a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy holds 70% of the issued share capital of
Quinta Asia Limited (“Quinta”). Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy has a
controlling interest in Quinta and is therefore deemed to be
interested in Quinta’s interest in the Company for the purposes
of the SFO. Mr. Lai Ching Ping holds the remaining 30% of the
issued share capital of Quinta (representing an indirect interest
in 223,130,990 Shares or approximately 17.59% shareholding in
the Company).

Mr. LAI Ching Ping is interested in 4,186,000 Shares held.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi is interested in 650,000 Shares held and is
also interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
10,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung is interested as a grantee of options to
subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

(b) Long positions in the shares of the Associated
Corporation of the Company (as defined in the SFO)

ERG) RO EFR

HEEE
BEERE Associated
Name of Directors corporation
ZEREE Quinta
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
REEEE Quinta

Mr. LAI Ching Ping

BREXFAEEEN RZZB-FF+Z
A=Z+t—-R EF THARIARESR
BNBBEAYEERRAFERZERLD
ARERELZE (EERESREER
EXVER) 2Bkt - HERO REZF2EM
BHFARE -
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1R B

EmEIL

Percentage of

&vig §=| interest in

=20 Number associated

Capacity of shares corporation

EEEBA 7 70%
Beneficial owner

BEREEA 3 30%

Beneficial owner

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of

the Directors, chief executive(s) or any of their respective

associates had any interest or short position, whether

beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares, the underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 December 2010, as far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive(s)
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions in the Shares

EAR TR
MOBE DL

Approximate

Beneficial owner

Templeton Asset
Management Ltd.

* HOWDRER=ZZ-ZF+=-A=+-AHE
2%471,268,400,000/% IR 1 3+ & o

REXFBREEN R-Z2-FF+Z/=
T—R  ARAYEEBEIAAL (RAATE
ERTHARRN) BH - RIREA2XIRH
RHEBROTFEERERESRAERMEXY
HME2RID B2 HEXABADAHERRE
BERBERHIFEIBHECRARAFEN
BREMNERIAR

EERHFEREK2ER

BRAZEXEKN) ESVETRAEEEY
FHEBFATHREERAAERERT ZEM
ERERER -

REKRE
Investment manager

g = percentage of
Number interest in

of Shares the Company*
743,769,967 58.64%
165,191,579 13.02%

*  The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2010.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Pre-IPO Share Options

In recognition of the contributions made by employees and a
consultant of the Group towards its growth and success, on 10
May 2006, Pre-IPO Share Options (the exercise of which would
entitle these grantees to an aggregate of 44,400,000 Shares)
have been granted by the Company to, and accepted by, among
others, certain employees.

Movements of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended 31
December 2010 are as follows:

BRAHERABREHA
Number of Pre-IPO Share Options
BROKEE
Exercise price RZE-2F RERTE RERXR R-E-2F
per Share THEEE -B-H Exercised Lapsed T—A=1-8
ARA BT SEAH Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee HK$ Vesting date period 01/01/2010 the year the year 31/12/2010
REEE 1.596 06/09/2006 06/09/2006~ 1,960,000 — — 1,960,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 3,960,000 — — 3,960,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 4,080,000 — — 4,080,000
09/05/2016
10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
TEREE 2.28 06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 404,000 — — 404,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 804,000 — — 804,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 792,000 — — 792,000
09/05/2016
2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
A5 B LA 1.14 30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
Mr. CHOW Chi Waiete 09/05/2016
9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
@t 21,000,000 — — 21,000,000

Total

BERTES -

KEEBEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Note: Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 29 January 2009.
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Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

A summary of the principal conditions attached to the Pre-IPO
Share Options is set out below:

1. Consideration

A cash consideration of HK$1.00 has been paid by each
grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

2. Option Period

Subject to other conditions as set out below, 10 years from
the date of the offer of the respective Pre-IPO Share Options
unless extended in writing by the Board (and approved by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) in its absolute
discretion. Each of the Pre-IPO Share Options (to the extent
not already exercised) shall lapse automatically at the end of
such option period.

3. Exercised Periods and Exercise Price

As set out on page 38.

4. Other Conditions

The grant and/or exercise of each of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is subject to the following additional conditions:

(a) the Pre-IPO Share Option cannot be exercised within the
first six months after the commencement of dealings in
the Shares;

(b) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option may be made
in part or in full subject to any further restrictions imposed
by the Company, the Stock Exchange and/or the sponsor
to the Company’s listing as any of them see fit for the
purposes of obtaining the Stock Exchange approval to
the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares;

(c) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall be further
subject to any guidelines issued by the Company from
time to time in order to ensure full compliance with the
Listing Rules;

(d) the Pre-IPO Share Option is personal to the relevant
grantee and may not be transferred or assigned;
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Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)
4. Other Conditions (Continued)

(e) the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse at the expiry of the option period
as described in paragraph 2 above or otherwise in the

following manner:

(i) FRANBEAKRLEK (WA) TR (i)
ERAGHE12BEARNTER
RAMERANBRE  HEX
THENEXDAERABERE
BEEBAY  HESSER
HEERELEH

(i) FRATEERLORERAE (ii)

BENEFNTEHNKLZE
mAL  BRIFALALZTERAR
BELXE WEIKIBETEY
RHEENHERT  BEXRT
FHEXAHERAERER
AEEALTEBRBEEH X
W

(i) MARAERAXFAEERD
BE & IR A B8 AR R AT AR R S AR
o BRTENERLORER
AERESEEAN HES
BUE2RMNBEITHLERE
iR

() BERAFAERAMBREARARE (f)
FHIFAAARTINLETREAT
BN EROEHERRS o

(iii)

the grantee’s personal representatives (if any) may
exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option within 12 months
from his death, upon the expiry of which the Pre-IPO
Share Option (to the extent not already exercised)
shall lapse automatically unless extended by the
Board in its absolute discretion;

the grantee’s right to exercise the Pre-IPO Share
Option shall not be affected by his/its cessation of
employment, unless such cessation of employment
arises from any serious misconduct, bankruptcy or
conviction of any criminal offence involving integrity
or honesty, in which case the Pre-IPO Share Option
(to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically on the his/its last date of employment
with the Group;

if the grantee breaches any term or condition of the
Pre-IPO Share Option as described herein, the Pre-
IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse automatically (unless
otherwise directed by the Board in writing in its

absolute discretion); and

the grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall adhere to
any undertakings or restrictions that may be further
imposed on them by the Stock Exchange or the sponsor

to the Company’s listing.

KEEBEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on
8 August 2006, the Company has established a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at their
discretion, invite any Directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisers
of or contractors to the Group (subject to the eligibility
requirements as set out therein) to take up options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing up to a maximum in
nominal value of 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date unless further Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted and to be granted
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months’ period up to the date of grant to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director or their
associates would not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue or an
aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 unless further Shareholders’
approval has been obtained; and to each other eligible person

would not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants have made or may make to
the Group. It also provides the eligible participants with an
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company with a
view to (a) motivate the eligible participants to optimise the
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (b)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions are,
will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 7 August 2016. The exercise price of options shall be
determined by the Board and shall not be less than the highest of
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the options and the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer and the nominal value of
a Share. An option may be exercised at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not be more than ten
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described
in note 2.19(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2010, no share options had been granted or
were outstanding under this scheme.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC and
Vietnam, and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the
employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans
are set out in note 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major
customers and suppliers respectively for the year ended 31
December 2010 were as follows:

HHERD L HRBEIL

% of Sales % of Purchases

The largest customer/supplier 71.7% 9.5%
Five largest customers/suppliers 80.5% 24.3%

Umbro Group, being a connected person, is one of the five
largest customers to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2010. To the best knowledge and belief of the
Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder owning more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company, has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers as disclosed above.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirement as applicable to the following continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements, if
necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

(A) Purchases of fabrics by the Group

Oceanjade Corporation Limited (“Oceanjade”) is one of the
suppliers of Rich Form (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, for fabrics and related fabric-
samples (“Fabrics”) for the production of products bearing the
brand “New York Laundry”.

Given that Oceanjade is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr.
Chan’s brother, Mr. CHAN Kam Chuen, and that Mr. Chan is
a chief executive of Al-Aham, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, Oceanjade is therefore deemed
to be an associate of Mr. Chan, and hence a Connected
Person of our Company.

Our purchases of Fabrics from Oceanjade amounted to
approximately HK$61,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010, which was below the relevant annual cap approved by
the Stock Exchange and announced to the public on 19
November 2008.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(B) (i)

(B) (ii)

Sales of products bearing UMBRO brand to the Umbro
Group

We are an authorised supplier of the Umbro Group for
products bearing UMBRO brand for the Umbro Group’s
distribution in the EU. We, through Win Hanverky
Sportswear Company Limited (our wholly-owned
subsidiary) have been supplying such products to the
Umbro Group since 2004. Apart from engaging
independent third party contractors for the manufacture
of such products, our Group has also commenced the

manufacture of these products since 2008.

Umbro International is a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of our Company, hence it is a Connected
Person of our Company.

Our sales to Umbro Group amounted to approximately
HK$98,831,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010,
which was below the relevant annual cap approved by
the Stock Exchange and announced to the public on 26
May 2010.

Payment of royalty to the Umbro Group and purchases of
Umbro Products from the Umbro Group for distribution of
the Umbro Products

Pursuant to the Umbro Distributor Agreement, we
distribute various Umbro Products in the Greater China.
These products are sourced from Umbro International or
suppliers approved by the Umbro Group directly or via an
internet platform operated by the Umbro Group
(“Platform”). As part of the Umbro Distributor Agreement,
we pay, through T&S HK, royalty to the Umbro Group for
our distribution of Umbro Products in the Greater China
calculated in accordance with the terms set out therein.

Umbro International is a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of our Company, hence it is a Connected
Person of our Company.

Our royalty to and purchases from the Umbro Group
amounted to approximately HK$25,319,000 and
HK$9,139,000 respectively for the year ended 31
December 2010, which was below the relevant annual
caps approved by the Stock Exchange and announced to
the public on 15 October 2009.



BFEBERS @)

(€)

6 K 4 & B & UmbrofE M

HRAAEBEEUMbroEB R FANRT
HESXREEBCEYIRABE X4
EE-ERBEAEBEUmMbron HEIHET
M2 eHRE K BT EE M EUmbrofE
mUEDEE -

TSGBVI AX LT —HNBLINEE
BR MBBEEALT- - TSG
International® TSG BVIZ & i B 2
7 WBTSGBVINBEA » FEEXLD
FIEAL o

HE-_Z-ZEF+-HB=+—HL#EF
B AEBYEQXEEEFELRE -

aXBEEERLA([XE]) HEER

ARANMBAIERRKEHERD
AREMBLR ((ERENEE]) KX
EHHBERAAB-ZSTLEE-HD
ARXEREMBERE ((REKE]) #
FEE T RAE & R A5 )

TSGBVIAARAR —EMBARANEE
BE HEBEAL - XFHTSGBVI
2EMBLR > WEBTSG BVINEKE
A RBRARNEBEAL -

BE-_Z-ZF+-A=+—-HLF
B AEERBREERNEERKEL
BERLAFADESEENHEEES BN
#72,098,0003 7T 2 18,448,00058 7T » 1%
REXFHEARS IR -_ZTNET
—AZt+t-BR=-ZE-ZFtA+=H
BARAGHEBEELR o

EE2ME Report of the Directors

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(C) Purchases of Umbro Products from the TSG Group

Due to the long established relationship with the TSG Group,
TSG Group, one of the Umbro Group’s approved suppliers
which is also an approved supplier on the Platform, has been
supplying Umbro Products to T&S Group for distribution
pursuant to our Group’s distribution right under the Umbro
Distributor Agreement.

TSG BVI is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. TSG International
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is an
associate of TSG BVI, hence it is also a Connected Person of
our Company.

No purchases from the TSG Group has been made for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

(D) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited (“Amerseas”)

Bowker Garment Accessories Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Bowker Accessories Group”) and Win Hanverky
Textile Limited, subsidiaries of our Company, have been
supplying certain garment accessories and fabric,
respectively, to Amerseas and its subsidiaries (“Amerseas

Group”) starting from 2007.

TSG BVI is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person. Amerseas is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is an
associate of TSG BVI, hence it is also a Connected Person of
our Company.

Our sales by Bowker Accessories Group and Win Hanverky
Textile Limited to the Amerseas Group amounted to
HK$2,098,000 and HK$18,448,000
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2010, which

approximately

were below the relevant annual caps approved by the Stock
Exchange and announced to the public on 21 November
2008 and 12 July 2010 respectively.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(E) Sales of products bearing DIADORA brand to the Diadora

Group

Win Hanverky Sportswear Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries have been
supplying products bearing the DIADORA brand to Diadora
HK in the past.

Upon completion of the subscription and shareholders’
agreement entered into between, among others, our
Company and Diadora S.p.A. on 7 April 2008, Diadora S.p.A.
became a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of our
Company, hence it is a Connected Person of our Company.
As Diadora HK is an associate of Diadora S.p.A., it is a
Connected Person of our Company.

No sales of products bearing DIADORA brand to the Diadora
Group has been made for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,

have reviewed the continuing connected transactions made

during the year ended 31 December 2010 and confirmed that

these transactions were entered into:

(1
(2)

3)

(4)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and

have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped in
accordance to the waiver previously granted by the Stock
Exchange or previous announcement.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 43 to 46 of this annual report in accordance with
paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Save for the deviation from the CG Code as described in the
Corporate Governance Report set out in this annual report, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this
annual report. Principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 24 to 30 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout
the year ended 31 December 2010 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

By order of the Board

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
LI Kwok Tung Roy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2011
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

WIN HANVERKY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 177, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2011
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RZZE—ZHF+-A=+—H Asat31December 2010

aff VN
Consolidated Company
ZE-2F  CEINE “E-ZF  CERNE
s tZB ZEEAf : T8
=t-H =+-H -B-H =t-8 =t-A
As at As at As at As at As at
fi3 31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
Note 2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
THn TiEn T TEL TEL
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(RM3210) (GEME210)
E3l) E5)
(restated per ~ (restated per
Note 2.1(a)) ~ Note 2.1(a))
FHBEE Non-current assets
HETHRLHFERE Leasehold land and land use rights 6 40,066 39,938 41,879 - =
n% KERZE Property, plant and equipment 7 593,998 614,412 675,642 - =
BVEE Intangible assets 8 192,913 221,425 245,190 - =
RNBAR 2 RE Investments in subsidiaries 9 - = — 1404542 1371439
REEN R BR Interests in associates 10 32,107 27,044 23,851 - =
BRFEHEE Deferred income tax assets 19 9,138 17431 6,890 - =
THEESRER Available-for-sale financial assets 11 500 500 6,370 - =
=) U Other receivables 14 = = 8,417 = =
868,722 9075 1008239  1,404542 1371439
HBEE Current assets
E& Inventories 12 509,787 467,693 547,674 = =
EUEZRAREE Trade and bills receivable 13 568,660 540,368 769,350 - =
e BAFERAHERE Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14 88,470 58,536 88,633 198 680
BERROER Pledged bank deposits 15 1,184 = = = =
REBRER=BAZROTER Bank deposits with initial terms of over
three months 15 18,866 24,572 — - -
BeRBELEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 763,974 649,493 363,272 43 180
1,950,041 1740662 1,768,929 241 860
HBaE Current liabilities
EREZERREE Trade and bills payable 16 332,658 269,062 386,627 - =
FRE e Accruals and other payables 17 230,690 167,807 188,449 5,048 7,870
PHFEHER Current income tax liabilities 61,942 66,645 55,861 250 =
#E Borrowings 18 45,083 68,160 102,026 - =
WEAREERRRER Loan from non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiaries 36 7,500 — — - -
ERKBAARE Amounts due to subsidiaries 36 = = = 5 195
686,873 571,674 732,963 6,203 8,065
hHEE/ (BR) 3R Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,264,068 1168988 1,035,966 (5,962) (7,208)
BEERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 2,132,790 2089738 2044205 12398580 1,364,234

FEEIEZ17T7TENHE B KR —Ho -

of these financial statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 59 to 177 are an integral part

—EB-BEEH
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WZZE—ZF+=-F=+—H As at31December 2010

&t 27
Consolidated Company
ZE-8F ZIEAE Z3-3F CIEN%
t28 TZh  ZEEAF t=A 28
=t-B =t-R -A-R =t-A =t-A
As at As at As at As at As at
ff3 31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
Note 2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
TR TERL TER TR TARL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(ME2100) GERE210)
) )
(restated per ~ (restated per
Note 2.1(a))  Note 2.1(a))
FRBERE Non-current liabilities
HE Borrowings 18 - = 11,300 - —
ELHMEHER Deferred income tax liabiliies 19 5,20 2,095 3711 - -
5,022 2,095 15,011 - -
BEE Net assets 2,127,568 2,087,643  2,029,1% 1,398,580 1,364,234
B Equity
RRAREREAREEARGRE Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Rx Share capital 20 126,840 126,840 126,840 126,340 126,840
1 Reserves 21 974,829 937,660 045854 1,455 1,204,552
REEF Retained earnings P
-RERERBRRE - Proposed final and special dividends 38,052 19,026 10,147 38,052 19,026
-t - Others 802,703 772,946 702,151 29,136 13,816
1,942,424 1,856,472 1,784,992 1,398,580 1,364,234
FERER Non-controlling interests 185,144 231171 244,202 - =
Afs Total equity 2,127,568 2,087,643 2,029,194 1,398,580 1,364,234

EEOEZE17T7ENME BB HREZ B2 -

The accompanying notes on pages 59 to 177 are an integral part
of these financial statements.

ZER BEF
LI Kwok Tung Roy LAI Ching Ping
EE EZE
Director Director

KEEBERARALA
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BEZZT-ZTF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

i3 —E2-ZF CZ—ZETNE
Note 2010 2009
TER FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
&= Revenue 5 3,081,763 2,888,002
5 & B Cost of sales 24 (2,335,069) (2,096,090)
EA Gross profit 746,694 791,912
HER D HEAR Selling and distribution costs 24 (224,255) (259,739)
— R RTHAX General and administrative expenses 24 (428,106) (397,050)
Hits g A Other income 22 4,403 1,513
Hplizs,/ (FE) - & Other gains/(losses) — net 23 12,250 (3,428)
F<d—Bg| Operating profit 110,986 133,208
MEWRA Finance income 26 7,838 6,044
# & R A Finance costs 26 (8,567) (4,583)
AMEWAN - FH Finance income — net 4,271 1,461
FE 1 B = 1 =) s A Share of profits of associates 10 2,036 2,915
BR FiT 18 Bi A1 32 7 Profit before income tax 117,293 137,584
FEsEX Income tax expense 27 (44,492) (30,569)
FERA Profit for the year 72,801 107,015
U AR : Attributable to:
RARRERE A Equity holders of the Company 120,472 121,539
FEBRES Non-controlling interests (47,671) (14,524)
72,801 107,015
KATRREFEA Earnings per share for profit
EHEEERRNZ attributable to the equity holders
BREF of the Company during the year
(A= BB AL (expressed in HK cents per share)
-7 — basic 29 9.5 9.6
—#E — diluted 29 9.5 9.6
KA Dividends 30 86,251 50,736

BEEIEE177EM BB HREK —Z D °

The accompanying notes on pages 59 to 177 are an integral part

of these financial statements.
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S 4R & WE R Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BEZZT—ZTF+-A=+—-HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

B = —E2-Z2F Z—ZEZNE
Note 2010 2009
THER FTHER
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE A Profit for the year 72,801 107,015
Hir2E k& Other comprehensive income
PEAL B & A B H At Share of other comprehensive
2 [H Y &= income of associates 21 639 278
EMBEERE Currency translation differences 26,622 1,592
BREEKB A RER Settlement of/change in estimated
FEULSE £ IR R i 2 consideration receivable from
I REES 28 non-controlling interests in relation
to disposal of interest in a subsidiary 14 10,031 (8,901)
FEXEAKZHAE Total comprehensive
income for the year 110,093 99,984
U AL B Total comprehensive income
ZHEHKHEAE: attributable to:
RATRERFE A Equity holders of the Company 153,177 113,015
FERER Non-controlling interests (43,084) (13,031)
110,093 99,984
ERIEZ17TEMEBMBEHREZ—HD o The accompanying notes on pages 59 to 177 are an integral part

of these financial statements.
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EHHEZRBER Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZZT-ZTF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

ARAREREAER
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
FER
B
R Non- BREH
Share i @3t controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
(M3200  (HEE21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-EENE-R-ANER Balance at 1 January 2009 126,840 1,658,152 1,784,992 244,202 2,029,194
2EWE Comprehensive income
EERN/ (FB) Profit/(loss) for the year — 121,539 121,539 (14,524) 107,015
H2EkE Other comprehensive income
ERREEE Currency translation differences - 99 99 1,493 1,592
FHEMBLAERER Change in estimated consideration
FERER 2 5 receivable from non-controlling
REZF (frzt14) interests in relation to disposal
of interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) — (8,901) (8,901) — (8,901)
BiEBENT Share of other comprehensive
Hit2E W& income of associates — 278 278 — 278
Htt2ERELE Total other comprehensive income — (8,524) (8,524) 1,493 (7,031)
2HKEAR Total comprehensive income — 113,015 113,015 (13,031) 99,984
HEBARS Transactions with owners
BREE Share option scheme
- R E A (B3t 20) — value of services (Note 20) — 322 322 — 322
ERRE Dividend paid
-ZEENERH ~ 2008 final - (10,147) (10,147) — (10,147)
-ZEEAFRLY ~ 2009 interim — (7TM0)  (31,710) — 710)
BEEARZAH Total transactions with owners — (41,535) (41,535) = (41,535)
RZBENE
TZR=1t-BH&ER Balance at 31 December 2009 126,840 1,729,632 1,856,472 231171 2,087,643
—E-BEER
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EHHEZBE R Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZZT—ZTF+-A=+—-HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

ARAREREAELR
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
*ER
i
g Non- BEs
Share i @5t controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
(Maz20)  (KaE21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RZB-Z2E-B-HNER Balance at 1 January 2010 126,840 1,729,632 1,856,472 231,171 2,087,643
2Ek# Comprehensive income
EEER/ (F8) Profit/(loss) for the year - 120,472 120,472 (47,671) 72,801
Htt2EW R Other comprehensive income
ERBREEER Currency translation differences - 22,035 22,035 4,587 26,622
BHERBAAERENR Settlement of consideration
FERERZ receivable from non-controlling
REEM (FrzE14) interests in relation to disposal
of interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) - 10,031 10,031 - 10,031
BiEBENT Share of other comprehensive
Hit2E W& income of associates - 639 639 - 639
Htt2HWRAE Total other comprehensive income - 32,705 32,705 4,587 37,292
2EKBHAE Total comprehensive income - 153,177 153,177 (43,084) 110,093
HEEARS Transactions with owners
FERBER S Transaction with non-controlling
(HEE34) interests (Note 34) - - - 1,337 1,337
B A F Dividends paid to non-controlling
FERERZARE interests of subsidiaries - - - (4,280) (4,280)
ERE Dividend paid
-ZEZHERE - 2009 final - (19,026) (19,026) - (19,026)
-ZE-ZEhBREH - 2010 interim and special - (48,199) (48,199) - (48,199)
BREAARAE Total transactions with owners - (67,225)  (67,225) (2,943)  (70,168)
R=Z-%%
TZR=t-BH&ER Balance at 31 December 2010 126,840 1,815,584 1,942,424 185,144 2,127,568

EEOEZE177EM T BB RE -2 °

AEEBEERBERRA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

of these financial statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 59 to 177 are an integral part
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
F+ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

i —E2-ZF CZ—ZETNE
Note 2010 2009
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REXRBERE Cash flows from operating activities
REmBRE Cash generated from operations 31(a) 275,583 456,143
2R E Interest paid (8,567) (4,583)
ENERFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (34,897) (24,336)
ENFERECERSH Mainland China enterprise
income tax paid (2,672) (7,073)
BB H Overseas income tax paid — (12)
REXKMEB Net cash generated
BeFH from operating activities 234,447 420,139
RETBHEERE Cash flows from investing activities
s B B B A R 1 BR Acquisition of subsidiaries,
cWERS net of cash acquired 31(c) (423) —
W R E A R Subscription of additional
EERN N share capital of an associate 10 (2,388) —
2R E Interest received 7,437 4,478
BEWE  KEREE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (69,809) (41,043)
HEHS LK i Proceeds from disposal of leasehold
E)ﬂ%ﬁﬁ?—%?ﬁ land and land use rights 31(b) — 1,221
HEYE - M Proceeds from disposal of property,
RE B RIE plant and equipment 31(b) 12,291 3,049
HETHEES R Proceeds from disposal of
BEEMBRE available-for-sale financial assets 11 780 —
HPEEARITER New pledged bank deposits 15 (1,184) —
REHREB=EAZ Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits
RTEFRELD /(B 10) with initial terms of over three months 5,754 (24,572)
REFZDMERESFE Net cash used in investing activities (47,542) (56,867)
e

2010 Annual Report
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&6t L RER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEZZT—ZTF+-A=+—-HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

B = —E2-Z2F Z—ZEZNE
Note 2010 2009
THER FTHER
HK$'000  HK$'000
METHBEERE Cash flows from financing activities
MEBARFERRREER Loan from non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries 36(e) 7,500 —
BEMERIE Proceeds from borrowings 18,719 41,640
EBEEE Repayments of borrowings (43,926) (87,366)
ENEADAREZEARE Dividends paid to the
Company’s equity holders (67,225) (41,857)
ENLHBRRERR Dividends paid to minority interests (3,780) —
WM E D B X T E Proceeds from disposal
of interest in a subsidiary 34 1,337 9,307
METHMERSFE Net cash used in financing activities (87,375) (78,276)
ReRBRE&ZEEY Net increase in cash
12 b0 58 and cash equivalents 99,530 284,996
FEPNRERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 649,493 363,272
REeERBAESZEEY Exchange gains on cash
[E 5 U 2 and cash equivalents 14,951 1,225
Cash and cash equivalents
FRBERBELEEY at end of the year 15 763,974 649,493

FEIOEENTTENMEBHBRE —

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

of these financial statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 59 to 177 are an integral part



4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REH

XEEEEZERERAF ([F2F]) RE
MELAR (ABIFAEE]) NEBRLEE
MEERKER  BEEDR  BEX
BN S b = PR E ~ SEE R P AR & B
LB HEUARRBEE ([RR
BEED ZRHRAE > HMEEEON - X
RABEAEEF  URUDHERZER
AETFREARKREBHE - HEEEW
FTRURFEKRE -AEEEEWED
BANFERRG I BHRRME

AARRBBEHEFE D BEE22E (—
RAR—FEMREH » GHREBITX) F
MEZNZHREERAR - KD
¥+ U A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

RABRERBUERFMERAAES
—Fwo

BRERESBN SHBBHERUBLE
5 ERARRESER T ——F=
At R#ET -

EES RRME

UTARRZEEHUBHRRERAN
FRETHR - REAFAS  ZER
REABEAFEM2IE-—H -

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

General information

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of garment products, including
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, active and
outer wear, and related accessories. Sales are primarily
under Original Equipment Manufacturing (“OEM”)
arrangements to customers in Europe, North America and
Mainland China, and under distribution and retail modes in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Its production bases are
primarily located in Mainland China. Details of the principal
subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 9 to these
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Company’s board of
directors on 16 March 2011.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—EB-BEEH
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ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following revised standards and amendments to
standards and interpretation are effective for the
Group’s accounting period commencing 1 January
2010 and are relevant to the Group:

«  HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’. The amendment clarifies that the
potential settlement of a liability by the issue of
equity is not relevant to its classification as
current or non current. By amending the
definition of current liability, the amendment
permits a liability to be classified as non-current
(provided that the entity has an unconditional
right to defer settlement by transfer of cash or
other assets for at least 12 months after the
accounting period) notwithstanding the fact that
the entity could be required by the counterparty
to settle in shares at any time. The amendment
has no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendment), ‘Statement of cash flows’.
Only expenditures that result in a recognised
asset are eligible for classification as investing
activities. The amendment has no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes
specific guidance regarding classification of
leases of land, so as to eliminate inconsistency
with the general guidance on lease classification.
As a result, leases of land should be classified as
either finance or operating leases using the
general principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the
lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to
the lessee. Prior to the amendment, a land
interest which was not expected to pass to the
Group by the end of the lease term was classified
as an operating lease under “Leasehold land and
land use rights”, and amortised over the lease
term.

HKAS 17 (Amendment) has been applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning 1
January 2010 in accordance with the effective
date and transitional provisions of the
amendment. The Group has reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land and
land use rights as at 1 January 2010 on the basis
of information existing at the inception of those
leases, and recognised the leasehold land in
Hong Kong as finance leases retrospectively. As
a result of the reassessment, the Group has
reclassified certain leasehold land from operating
leases to finance leases.

A land interest of the Group that is held for own
use is accounted for as property, plant and
equipment and is depreciated from the land
interest available for its intended use over the
lease term.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)

The effect of the adoption of this amendment is

as below:
—E-2F “ETNE —EEINF
+=A=+-B t=-A=t+—H —-A—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
TER THER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Decrease in leasehold
land and land use rights (9,123) (13,292) (13,642)
Increase in property, plant
and equipment 9,123 13,292 13,642
Decrease in amortisation
of leasehold land
and land use rights (247) (350) (350)
Increase in depreciation
of property, plant
and equipment 247 350 350
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KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The amendment has had no impact on the
Group’s reported results and reserves.

HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements’, requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control
and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to
fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. The revised standard has no impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
as the Group’s accounting policy on transactions
with non-controlling interests has complied with
the revised requirements.
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2 EESHHEEME @

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 RBEE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) AEBERMZHTREBTE
8l (80

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)
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HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’.
This clarifies that the largest unit permitted for
the goodwill impairment test is the lowest level of
operating segment before any aggregation as
defined in HKFRS 8. The amendment does not
have any impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the Group’s existing
accounting policy on goodwill allocation complies
with the amended requirements.

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’. This
clarifies the description of the valuation
techniques commonly used to measure intangible
assets acquired in a business combination when
they are not traded in an active market. In
addition, an intangible asset acquired in a
business combination might be separable but
only together with a related contract, identifiable
asset or liability. In such cases, the intangible
asset is recognised separately from goodwill but
together with the related item. The Group will
apply HKAS 38 (Amendment) prospectively to all
intangible assets acquired in business
combination for which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 January 2010. This amendment has
had no impact on the current year as there have
been no intangible assets acquired in the
business combination of Charmtech Group.

—EB-BEEH
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’,
and consequential amendments to HKAS 27,
‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’,
HKAS 28, ‘Investments in associates’, and HKAS
31, ‘Interests in joint ventures’, are effective
prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 July 2009. The revised standard continues
to apply the acquisition method to business
combinations but with some significant changes
compared with HKFRS 3. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are recorded at
fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-
measured through the statement of
comprehensive income. Any indemnification
asset will be recognised at an amount equivalent
to the fair value of the indemnified liability;
previously any amount received from the vendor
under indemnity would be recognised as an
indemnification asset of the acquirer and would
have been adjusted against goodwill once
received from the vendor. Subsequent
measurement of the indemnification asset and
contingent liability will have no net impact on
future earnings, unless the indemnification asset
becomes impaired. There is a choice on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
Previously there was no choice, and the non-
controlling interests would have been recognised
at the proportionate share of the net assets of the
acquiree. All acquisition-related costs are
expensed.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 B EE (3 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) AEBERMZHTREBTE
8l (80

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)
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The revised standard was applied to the
acquisition of the 75% equity interests in
Charmtech Industrial Limited and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Charmtech (Qing Yuan)
Garment Manufacturing Limited (together, the
“Charmtech Group”) on 1 July 2010. Acquisition-
related costs of HK$312,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
which previously would have been included in the
consideration for the business combination. The
Group has chosen to recognise the non-
controlling interests at proportionate share of
Charmtech Group’s net assets rather than at fair
value. See Note 35 for further details of the
business combination of Charmtech Group.

—EB-BEEH
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 8 (Amendment), ‘Operating segments’.
Disclosure of information about total assets and
liabilities for each reportable segment is required
only if such amounts are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The amendment
does not have any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as amounts of
total assets and liabilities for each reportable
segment are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 (Amendment), ‘Reassessment
of embedded derivatives’. This amendment aligns
the scope of HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 with the scope of
HKFRS 3 (Revised): the interpretation does not
apply to embedded derivatives in contracts
acquired in a business combination, a common
control combination or the formation of a joint
venture. The Group will apply HK(IFRIC) — Int 9
(Amendment) prospectively to all embedded
derivatives in contracts acquired in business
combination for which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 January 2010. This amendment has
had no impact on the current year as there have
been no embedded derivatives in contracts
acquired in the business combination of
Charmtech Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations mandatory

for the first time for the financial year beginning 1

January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group

(although they may affect the accounting for future

transactions and events)

HKAS 39 (Amendment), ‘Eligible hedge items’.
The amendment makes two significant changes.
It prohibits designating inflation as a hedgeable
component of a fixed rate debt. Inflation is not
separately identifiable and reliably measurable as
a risk or a portion of a financial instrument,
unless it is a contractually specified portion of the
cash flows of a recognised inflation-linked bond
whose other cash flows are unaffected by the
inflation portion. It also prohibits including time
value in a one-sided hedged risk when
designating options as hedges. An entity may
only designate the change in the intrinsic value of
an option as the hedging instrument of a one-
sided risk arising from a forecast transaction in a
hedging relationship. A one-sided risk is that
changes in cash flows or fair value of a hedged
item is above or below a specified price or other
variable.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations mandatory

for the first time for the financial year beginning 1

January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group

(although they may affect the accounting for future

transactions and events) (Continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments), ‘Group cash-settled
share-based payment transactions’, effective
form 1 January 2010. In addition to incorporating
HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2’, and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, 'HKFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transactions’, the amendments
expand on the guidance in HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 to
address the classification of group arrangements
that were not covered by that interpretation.

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations’. The
amendment clarifies that HKFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required in respect of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations. It also clarifies
that the general requirement of HKAS 1 still
apply, in particular paragraph 15 (to achieve a
fair presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of
estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations mandatory

for the first time for the financial year beginning 1

January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group

(although they may affect the accounting for future

transactions and events) (Continued)

HK — Int 5, ‘Presentation of financial statements —
Classification by the borrower of a term loan that
contains a repayment on demand clause’, issued
on 29 November 2010 with immediate effect. This
interpretation reflects the decision made by the
IFRS Interpretations Committee and brings it into
effect under HKFRS that a liability, which may be
callable by the lender at any time without cause
(an overriding right of demand), must be
classified as a current liability in accordance with
paragraph 69(d) of HKAS 1 (Revised),
‘Presentation of financial statements’. The Group
currently has no non-current borrowings which
include such repayment on demand clause.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations mandatory

for the first time for the financial year beginning 1

January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group

(although they may affect the accounting for future

transactions and events) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9, ‘Reassessment of embedded
derivatives and HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’, effective from 1
July 2009. This amendment to HK(IFRIC) — Int 9
requires an entity to assess whether an
embedded derivative should be separated from a
host contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid
financial asset out of the ‘fair value through profit
or loss’ category. This assessment is to be made
based on circumstances that existed on the later
of the date the entity first became a party to the
contract and the date of any contract
amendments that significantly change the cash
flows of the contract. If the entity is unable to
make this assessment, the hybrid instrument
must be remained and classified as at fair value
through profit or loss in its entirety.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group
(although they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events) (Continued)

+ HK(IFRIC) — Int 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment
in a foreign operation’ effective from 1 July 2009.
This amendment states that, in a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation, qualifying
hedging instruments may be held by any entity or
entities within the group, including the foreign
operation itself, as long as the designation,
documentation and effectiveness requirements of
HKAS 39 that relate to a net investment hedge
are satisfied. In particular, the group should
clearly document its hedging strategy because of
the possibility of different designations at
different levels of the group.

«  HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, ‘Distribution of non-cash
assets to owners’ (effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009). The interpretation was
published in November 2008. This interpretation
provides guidance on accounting for
arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-
cash assets to shareholders either as a
distribution of reserves or as dividends. HKFRS 5
has also been amended to require that assets
are classified as held for distribution only when
they are available for distribution in their present
condition and the distribution is highly probable.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amended standards and interpretations mandatory

for the first time for the financial year beginning 1

January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group

(although they may affect the accounting for future

transactions and events) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18, ‘Transfers of assets from
customers’, effective for transfer of assets
July 2009. This
requirements of

HKFRSs for agreements in which an entity

received on or after 1

interpretation clarifies the

receives from a customer an item of property,
plant and equipment that the entity must then use
either to connect the customer to a network or to
provide the customer with ongoing access to a
supply of goods or services (such as a supply of
electricity, gas or water). In some cases, the
entity receives cash from a customer that must
be used only to acquire or construct the item of
property, plant, and equipment in order to
connect the customer to a network or provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply of
goods or services (or to do both).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New and revised standards, amendments and an
interpretation have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

+ HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011). The amendment confirms
that entities may present either in the statement
of changes in equity or within the notes, an
analysis of the components of other
comprehensive income by item. The Group will
apply HKAS 1 (Amendment) from 1 January
2011.

« HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related party disclosures’,
issued in November 2009. It supersedes HKAS
24, ‘Related party disclosures’, issued in 2003.
HKAS 24 (Revised) is mandatory for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. Earlier
application, in whole or in part, is permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the
definition of a related party and removes the
requirement for government-related entities to
disclose details of all transactions with the
government and other government-related
entities. The Group will apply the revised
standard from 1 January 2011. The revised
standard has no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New and revised standards, amendments and an
interpretation have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)
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HKAS 34 (Amendment), ‘Interim financial
reporting’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011). The amendment clarifies
the meaning of ‘significant events and
transactions’ by providing examples of the events
or transactions that would require disclosure.
Greater emphasis has been placed on the
disclosure principles in HKAS 34 involving
significant events and transactions, including
changes to fair value measurements, and the
need to update relevant information from the
most recent annual report. The Group will apply
HKAS 34 (Amendment) from 1 January 2011.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011). The amendment clarifies
seven disclosure requirements for financial
instruments, with a particular focus on the
qualitative disclosures and credit risk disclosures.
The Group will apply HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
from 1 January 2011.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New and revised standards, amendments and an
interpretation have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).
Financial assets are required to be classified into
two measurement categories: those to be
measured subsequently at fair value, and those
to be measured subsequently at amortised cost.
The decision is to be made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity’'s
business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument. The standard is
to be applied retrospectively and allows
exemptions for restating comparatives for early
adoption before 1 January 2012. The Group is
now in the progress of assessing HKFRS 9’s full
impact and has not yet decided when to adopt
HKFRS 9.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New and revised standards, amendments and an
interpretation have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)
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HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’ (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010). The
interpretation clarifies the accounting by the
debtor when the debtor renegotiates the terms of
its debt with the result that the liability is
extinguished through issuing its own equity
instruments to the creditor (i.e. a “debt for equity
swap”). A gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the fair value of the
equity instruments issued and the carrying
amount of the financial liability. If the fair value of
the equity instruments cannot be reliably
measured then the fair value of the existing
financial liability is used to measure the gain or
loss. The amount of the gain or loss should be
separately disclosed on the face of the statement
of comprehensive income or in the notes. This
interpretation applies to all debtors that enter into
debt for equity swap transactions in full or partial
settlement of a financial liability. The Group will
apply HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 from 1 January 2011.

Certain prior year comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform with the current year
presentation.



2 EESHHEEME @

2.2 5 HHIR B

EHMBEREELRARESRE
MEAABE+T-RAR=1t—-HRNH
BH]|E

(a) KMIB2D A

MEBAREASERREZHE
MBREBRARN-YIDR (B
BEABKRENRINRE) - T
FREBEGEEBFXERE
B-RFGAERERGESNS
—RAK  BEBEBUTE
FUBRNEERERNEE
TE -EMBRRAEHNESR
BEXAKBZBEENBRAZ
[ER=R DN R 2L
B FIE S AR ©

AEEDRAGTRBERRE
BattAR - WBE-—XHEL
ArERNERMEREE
FELERERAKEMETR
B2RVEAE  FERERE
BREMIARERFEELEZ
TRNEEHEB/ZRFE - R
BHBRAREERIHE - B
BBz TRAE
ERFEAEZEBERIAARE
& AREERBBRZDYT
Bt - ZBEEBRBEE X
EEUAFERFERERE
ARG RBBAEERE
EREMHRWBAFRZRE

= o

REBAR 2RETI AR
BEZRETR - KRAKEHE
UARBREFAKEBITEEZ

EEBMGRE -

& Bt B 7 8 R M 5F Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 568K B @) 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) FEREZRS

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
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The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset, as
appropriate. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 568K B @) 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) HEEFEEE (d) Jointly controlled entity
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Jointly controlled entity is an entity where the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. Investment in a jointly controlled
entity is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and is initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entity’s
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
jointly controlled entity have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in jointly controlled entity
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee comprising
executive directors of the Company.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the income
statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories, retail
outlets and offices. Leasehold land classified as finance
leases and all other property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction in progress represents buildings and
leasehold improvements in which construction work has
not been completed and plant, machinery and equipment
pending for installation. It is carried at cost which
includes construction expenditures and other direct costs
less any impairment losses. On completion, construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided for
construction in progress until it is completed and
available for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.



4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

2 EESHHEEME @

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

25 % BERZE @

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not depreciated.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified Over the lease terms
as finance lease

— Buildings 10 to 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or
over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
— Plant and machinery 4 to 10 years
— Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles and yacht 5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
income statement.

2.6 Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and
land use rights are accounted for as operating leases.
They are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the lease, or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate/business at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in investments in associates.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity

sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
(“CGU”) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGU or groups of CGU
that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks and

licences over their estimated useful lives of 25 years.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair value
attributable to the customer base or existing
contractual bids with customers taken over as a
result of business combination, and are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relations have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the customer relationship.

2.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

associates and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, and are tested at least annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or
associates is required upon receiving dividends from
these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary or associate in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net

assets including goodwill.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except that those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprised trade
and other receivables, bank deposits with initial terms
of over three months, and cash and cash equivalents
in the balance sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially

all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

When financial assets classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

» Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

» A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

« The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

* It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

» The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

» Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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(i) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(ii) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. In the case of equity investments classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in
the income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, and the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense comprises current and deferred income
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries/places where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
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Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for any deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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contributions to publicly or privately administered
trust funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

* including any market performance conditions;

» excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

« excluding the impact of any non-vesting

conditions (for example, the requirement for

employees to save).

9% KEEEERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
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(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
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Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of its subsidiaries is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to equity.

The social security contributions payable in
connection with the grant of the share options is
considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice

that has created a constructive obligation.
(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is
not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Subcontracting income

Subcontracting income is recognised when
subcontracting services are provided.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(d) Concessionaire sales service income

Concessionaire sales service income is recognised
when the sales services are provided.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.22 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.24 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s equity holders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holders.



3

4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRAKREE

M ERAREER

AEEEBIRZESEHER
Emk - FERR  RBESRAR
ERERERATENZ@E -

AEEzEBEREPRAERR
NEMMTERELEREREBER
PEAREMBRAEZBERNY
E - AREYEERTEESHIA
HHIEERRAZEFHHEME

(a) SMNERLER

AEBESREZEEE (FEAA
RERERT) WINERR - R
BEXZRELNINERRE
RERNBHEBNEERAE
UARFERE -

R=ZE-ZTFE+-A=+-—
A fihEARBEBTER
S EHL% (ZEENE D 1%)
MEBHBITERZRER
# FRBARBRESEAR
=GR 46,344,000
T (Z2Z2HE : 1,070,000
) TEHRERUFEAAR
BIENRERRESEY
W E 5 K% H o FEUIE TR A K
FEH B 5 K H fth FE 4 1R X B Y
HNEWEEE o

RRERETEITHE &
UETIENEEREEND
ERREEAEE -

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and, where
considered necessary, seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group has not used derivative financial instruments
to hedge its risk exposures to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Chinese Renminbi and United
States Dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, and net investments in foreign
operations.

As at 31 December 2010, if Chinese Renminbi had
strengthened/weakened by 4% (2009: 1%) against
the Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year and equity holders’ equity
would have been approximately HK$6,344,000 (2009:
HK$1,070,000) higher/lower mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Chinese Renminbi denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade
and other payables.

The foreign currency exchange exposure on assets
and liabilities denominated in United States Dollars is
considered to be minimal as Hong Kong Dollars is
currently pegged to United States Dollars.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the
unfavourable economic conditions and the lower
liquidity situation which could in turn impact their
ability to repay the amounts owed to the Group.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may
also have an impact on management’s cash flow
forecasts and assessment of the impairment of
receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected
updated estimates of expected future cash flows in
their impairment assessments.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. It performs periodic credit evaluations/
reviews of its customers.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers
having an appropriate credit history. The Group
grants its customers credit terms ranging from 30 to
90 days. Most of the Group’s sales are on open
account, while sales made to a small number of
customers are covered by letters of credit issued by
banks or settled by documents against payment
issued by banks.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s trade
receivables due from one group of customers (2009:
one group of customers) represent approximately
77% (2009: 72%) of its total trade receivables from
third parties (Note 13). The Group has no other
significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group has policies to place deposits and cash
and cash equivalents only with major financial
institutions. Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these financial institutions
as they have no default history in the past.

Liquidity risk

Prudent
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of

liquidity risk management includes
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit

facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn borrowing
facility and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. Surplus cash held by Group
entities over and above balances required for working
capital management is invested in interest-bearing
bank accounts and term deposits with appropriate
maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient
head-room as determined by the above-mentioned
forecasts.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, all
financial liabilities of the Company are due within one
year. Balances due within 12 months equal their

SHREEREEMRE carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
—ZWME —EEE
PR—F Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and &t
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
TET THET THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
&t Consolidated
R=ZB-FF At 31 December
tT=A=+—H 2010
BERFERIE Borrowings and
interest payment 46,846 — — 46,846
LRG| Loan from
FERRR non-controlling
HERK shareholder of
subsidiaries 7,500 — — 7,500
FE1$ B 5 iR X Trade and
R EE bills payable 332,658 — — 332,658
FESTIR F & Accruals and
H b S IR X other payables 239,690 — — 239,690
626,694 — — 626,694
RZEZNF At 31 December
+=ZA=+-—*H 2009
BERAERE Borrowings and
interest payment 70,817 — — 70,817
FE 13 & 5 1R =X Trade and
REE bills payable 269,062 — — 269,062
FE 5T IR X &% Accruals and
H fth & {3 1R FX other payables 167,807 — — 167,807
507,686 — — 507,686

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As at 31 December 2010, except for the pledged
bank deposits of HK$1,184,000 (2009: Nil), bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months of
HK$18,866,000 (2009: HK$24,572,000) and short-
term bank deposits of HK$737,143,000 (2009:
HK$625,959,000) which carried weighted average
interest rates of 3.3% per annum, 2.3% per annum
(2009: 0.9% per annum) and 1.1% per annum (2009:
0.5% per annum), respectively, the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing assets. Majority of
these balances are at floating rates.

Except for the short-term borrowings of
HK$45,083,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$68,160,000), the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities.

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest
rates had been increased/decreased by one
percentage-point and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net profit would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$7,121,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$5,824,000). The fluctuation is attributable to
interest income from pledged bank deposits, bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months and
short-term bank deposits, and interest expense on
bank borrowings.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report

105



106

& 3EEt B MR HIEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T

HE=

=

3 SREREE@

32 EAEBRERE

AEBNESEEBERRRELE
EREFELE UARRREMHE
o RERELGEZERE 2
@ THERREZEXGEBIUNE
EEMA - ATHREIARELRSE
B AEETREAEARRLN
ZREEH BOHRIALEEE
R EETR o

RZE-ZF+ZA=+—-H &
EEENEEESMRR EELAHEER
BERBEZEEY) -

RBETEMAT - FRERE
EEEENRETRELR - AL ER
BERERUESAENE -

RZE-ZER-ZETNE+ZH

ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the Company’s
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group was in a net cash
position (total borrowings were less than cash and cash
equivalents).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were

=St-—HZEEEELENT : as follows:
“E2-Z2F Z—ZEZTNE
2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREE (ME18) Total borrowings (Note 18) 45,083 68,160
M A R FEZER Loan from non-controlling
BRI ERK shareholder of subsidiaries
(FzE36(e)) (Note 36(e)) 7,500 —
52,583 68,160
R Total equity 2,127,568 2,087,643
BEEELER Gearing ratio 2.5% 3.3%

TR REEEREMEEMRNE
BRTEEHRH

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The decrease in the gearing ratio above resulted
primarily from the repayment of bank borrowings.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The method by which the fair values of financial
instruments are established are categorised as follows:

(i) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (for
example, as prices) or indirectly (for example,
derived from prices).

(iii) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

The Group’s 10% equity interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in the United States of America (“USA”),
which was classified as available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 11), was measured at fair value according to Level
3 under the hierarchy. The fair value of the available-for-
sale financial assets was determined by using ‘share of
net asset’ approach which was based on the unaudited
financial position of the investee company as at 31
December 2010 with a discount for non-controlling
interests according to the market practice. This valuation
technique is consistent with the previous year.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

There were no changes to the carrying amount of Level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The following table presents the changes in the carrying
amounts of Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December 2009:

AHHE
Available-for-sale
financial assets

TERT

HK$°000

3] Beginning of the year 6,370

WERE Provision for impairment (5,870)

FH End of the year 500
REHFIEERERZ Change in fair value recognised in consolidated

FRAATFEEH income statement during the year (5,870)

REEREREZRARENES
RABERBERAREQAFEZEEY
B mRRELRE  URBAR
EREEERIATEMSA XN
RAERRGNREREMMETE
BMEENLFE-

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
value may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or
net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it
may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
income statement.

—2-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions, or based
on value-in-use calculations or market valuations
according to the estimated periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of
intangible assets. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, and it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in future
periods.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

(i) Golf and high-end fashion apparel manufacturing
business

The goodwill being allocated to the golf and high-end
fashion apparel manufacturing business resulted
from the acquisition of Charmtech Group on 1 July
2010 (Note 35), which is included in the
manufacturing segment. No impairment was
recognised against this goodwill during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for this CGU had been one percentage-
point lower than management's estimates at 31
December 2010 (that is, 33% instead of 34%), and
the estimated cost of capital used in determining the
pre-tax discount rate for the CGU had been one
percentage-point higher than management’s
estimates (that is, 12% instead of 11%), still no
impairment against goodwill would be recognised by
the Group.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

(if) Sportswear distribution business in Mainland China

No impairment was recognised against the goodwill
attributable to the sportswear distribution business in
Mainland China (included in the distribution and retail
segment) during the year ended 31 December 2010.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for this CGU had been one percentage-
point lower than management’'s estimates at 31
December 2010 (that is, 28% instead of 29%), or the
estimated cost of capital used in determining the pre-
tax discount rate for the CGU had been one
percentage-point higher than management’s
estimates (that is, 12% instead of 11%), still no
impairment against goodwill would be recognised by
the Group.

(iii) Sportswear distribution and retail business in

Mainland China

This goodwill, which is included in the distribution
and retail segment, has been fully impaired in last
year.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d) Estimated impairment of trademarks

(e)

The Group tests whether the trademarks have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amount of the
trademarks has been determined based on relief from
royalty valuation. These calculations require the use of

estimates.

Impairment of HK$54,000,000 (2009: Nil) was charged
against the trademarks during the year ended 31
December 2010.

If the royalty rate used in the relief from royalty valuation
for the trademarks had been one percentage-point lower
than management’s estimates at 31 December 2010 (that
is, 5% instead of 6%), additional impairment against the
trademarks of HK$24,000,000 would be recognised by
the Group. In addition, if the estimated cost of capital
used in determining the pre-tax discount rate for the
trademarks had been one percentage-point higher than
management’s estimates (that is, 14.8% instead of
13.8%), the Group would have recognised a further
impairment of trademarks of HK$10,000,000.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

—EB-BEEH
2010 Annual Report
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of
customers and other debtors and current market
conditions, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at the
end of each reporting period.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management expects it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available to utilise the temporary
differences or tax losses. Management reassesses its

expectation at the end of each reporting period.
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Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Committee comprising the executive directors of
the Company’s Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Committee reviews the performance of the
Group mainly from a business operation perspective. The
Group is organised into two main business segments, namely
(i) Manufacturing, and (ii) Distribution and Retail. The
Manufacturing segment represents manufacturing of
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, and active and
outer wear, primarily under OEM arrangements to customers
mainly in Europe, North America and Mainland China. The
Distribution and Retail segment represents the distribution
and retail of ‘Umbro’ and ‘Diadora’ branded sportswear,
footwear, accessories and sport equipment in Mainland China
and Hong Kong.

The Executive Committee assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of operating results
of each segment, which excludes the effects of non-recurring
earnings and expenditures and finance income and finance
costs in the result for each operating segment. Other
information provided to the Executive Committee is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.
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5 2 EE R @) 5 Segment information (Continued)
E_Z-ZE+_HA=+t-HLEE The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010
DEEEWT : are as follows:
PHEREBE
4£F  Distribution A0 E st
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
o E AU & Total segment revenue 2,639,550 447,034 = 3,086,584
2 E R U & Inter-segment revenue (4,821) — — (4,821)
Iy &= Revenue 2,634,729 447,034 — 3,081,763
gERA (BB) /2 BEE Operating profit (loss)/
segment results 246,355 (135,369) — 110,986
BMEWRA Finance income 7,838
BEH A Finance costs (3,567)
FEfE B2 1\ BR A Share of profits of associates 2,036 = = 2,036
BRET B 5 AR A Profit before income tax 117,293
ERAX Income tax expense (44,492)
EERAN Profit for the year 72,801
SFAGHABERNEMSBEENT - Other segment items included in the consolidated income

statement are as follows:

PHREE
4£E  Distribution 08 # 5t
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
TET TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HE L 1 b {55 P RE S 8 Amortisation of leasehold
land and land use rights 1,001 — — 1,001
ME - BERZBERTE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 78,574 23,437 — 102,011
BVEE#E Amortisation of intangible
assets — 8,856 — 8,856
BREERE Impairment of intangible
assets — 54,000 — 54,000
FERERR - F8 Write-back of impairment
of inventories, net (3,211) (1,203) — (4,414)
FE R IR 2% (B ) RiE — B8 (Write-back) impairment
of receivables, net (2,651) 6,336 — 3,685
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PHBER @ 5 Segment information (Continued)
BE-ZZNF+ZR=+—-BLEE The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2009
DEELEWT : are as follows:
PHREE
4£E  Distribution A8 st
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
2B W E Total segment revenue 2,387,575 536,501 — 2,924,076
2 2P U & Inter-segment revenue (36,074) — — (36,074)
Iy 55 Revenue 2,351,501 536,501 — 2,888,002
KERH (BR) /PBEE Operating profit (loss)/
segment results 240,932 (107,402) (322) 133,208
FEWA Finance income 6,044
MERE Finance costs (4,583)
A NGTbi Yl Share of profits of associates 2,915 — — 2,915
BR BT B % AR A Profit before income tax 137,584
FEREX Income tax expense (30,569)
EERA Profit for the year 107,015
SAGHABRNEMIBEENT ¢ Other segment items included in the consolidated income

statement are as follows:

PHREE
4£E  Distribution K08 st
Manufacturing and retail  Unallocated Total
TER TER TET TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HEL R T EREHESE  Amortisation of leasehold
land and land use rights 891 — — 891
ME - BBERZETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 77,713 27,168 — 104,881
B ERESE Amortisation of intangible assets = 8,855 = 8,855
BVEERE Impairment of intangible assets — 15,050 — 15,050
AEHESHEERE Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 5,870 — — 5,870
BRERE/ (BE) - F8 Impairment of/(write-back of)
inventories, net 963 (524) — 439
JE IR SR (E — R 88 Impairment of receivables, net 9,451 1,832 - 11,283
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5 2 EE R @) Segment information (Continued)
DHERZHERAEEET A B LE 1 Inter-segment transactions are conducted at terms mutually
ERRFRET o KD BEHAE A AM agreed among group companies. Unallocated costs represent
%o corporate expenses.

PTHEETERREAEL R L HER
MR BERRE BREE R
BEQAANRE  THEESREE
FE EBUESRY REREMEKR
TR RERRESEEVEREHRE
BZERANBRITER ROBEEZXE
BREELEXAENRERBSEE
W REHEREEREGHEE °

PTHEBTERRELLEAG R0 EE
EXIROREERERAEBROHHAE
BEE -

EXAREEHEL R IERE -
MK HERRE THRHESREE
REFEENTE  BREBEBAH
NBBREENRE

Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold land and land
use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investments in associates, available-for-sale financial assets,
inventories, trade, bills and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months. Unallocated assets mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents held for corporate uses, tax recoverable and
deferred income tax assets.

Segment liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities.
Unallocated liabilities mainly comprise deferred income tax
liabilities and current income tax liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold land
and land use rights, property, plant and equipment, available-
for-sale financial assets, and intangible assets, including
additions resulting from acquisitions through business
combinations.

R-ZZB-ZE+-F=+—-RAZoHE The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 and
EREBERBE-Z—ZEHF+=-RA=F capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:
—HLEFENERBINT :
PHREE

%E  Distribution A28 Ast
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total
T T T T#T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
gE Assets 2,249,396 528,595 9,565 2,787,556
BeEAw Associates 32,107 — — 32,107
BEE Total assets 2,281,503 528,595 9,565 2,819,663
“Bef Total liabilities 508,440 116,491 67,164 692,095
EREY Capital expenditure 86,995 12,856 = 99,851
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5 2 EE R @) 5 Segment information (Continued)
R-ZBEAFE+-A=+—-HZoHE The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 and
EREBERBE_ZZEAFT-A=T capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:
—BLEFENERBAZNOT :

PHREE
4%  Distribution AOE st
Manufacturing and retail Unallocated Total
T T T T
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets 1,888,121 726,665 19,582 2,634,368
- UNG Associates 27,044 — — 27,044
mEE Total assets 1,915,165 726,665 19,582 2,661,412
BeE Total liabilities 350,392 154,637 68,740 573,769
EXEX Capital expenditure 33,033 14,764 — 47,797
ZEEE D NEBRENREE 2K The Group’s revenue from external customers by
WU - geographical location is as follows:
—E-ZF ZEEZNE
2010 2009
THER FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W #5 Revenue
BB Hong Kong 163,293 139,838
BOM Europe 1,250,165 1,200,720
HE A i Mainland China 715,004 847,645
=H United States of America 215,852 116,347
InEX Canada 67,525 63,622
H 1 55 M Bl =} Other Asian countries 442,587 345,679
Hith Others 227,337 174,151

3,081,763 2,888,002
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5 2 EE R @)

AEEZBRATHUEIREERR
REEEMHETE -

Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the final destination of delivery of the products.

—E-ZF CZEENE

2010 2009
TR Tign
HK$°000 HK$'000

DEWRE DN Analysis of revenue by category

HEEm Sales of goods 3,074,141 2,881,185

=MD B R Provision of subcontracting services 7,622 6,817
3,081,763 2,888,002

BuRED 2 RBDEE (ERMITARE
EREHEERN BBMT :

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets by geographical
location is as follows:

—g-8F -TTIhF

2010 2009

TER TERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

b Hong Kong 39,276 53,038
[ A Mainland China 778,981 808,202
HiE=R Other countries 40,827 41,579

859,084 902,819

BE-_Z-ZF+-A=+—-HLF
E  #%2,260,468,0008 T (ZEF
ALE :1,951,545,000% 7T) IR B & —
HAINREP - ZEWENFRBEESE
i% o

120 % EZ&EBEERBRAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenues of
approximately HK$2,260,468,000 (2009: HK$1,951,545,000)
were derived from a single group of external customers.
These revenues are attributable to the manufacturing
business.
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6 HELHRLHERE—S6 6 Leasehold land and land use rights - Consolidated

AEEMBEENHEEL R T FERE The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
BalBRIEElEREREREFE represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
DHWMTE book amounts are analysed as follows:
R-ZZBHLE
—R-8H
—E-ZF “EZRE 1 January
2010 2009 2009
TER TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
(RKEE2.1(a)  (RHIEE2.1(a)
E) E)
(restated (restated
per Note per Note
2.1(a)) 2.41(a))
EEBER In Hong Kong held on:
HENF10ZE505F Leases of between
10 and 50 years - — —
EHREAEREE In Mainland China held on:
T AREEBE0E Land use rights of over 50
years — — 1,221
T ERAEN F102505F Land use rights of between
10 and 50 years 40,066 39,938 40,658
40,066 39,938 41,879
—E2-ZF CZEZETNE
2010 2009
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Fe&E50)
(restated)
F4 MZAFER Beginning of the year, as previously reported 53,230 55,521
RmEBETERE 175 Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
CHESFAZ (Amendment) (13,292) (13,642)
FHME Beginning of the year, as restated 39,938 41,879
fE 5 =5 Exchange differences 1,129 152
HE Disposals — (1,202)
e e Amortisation (1,001) (891)
£ End of the year 40,066 39,938
BAKEHERENEHSTA KRR Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been
THHAX included in general and administrative expenses.
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7 ME- HBERRE-GH

7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated

KARE BENZ GRRRE REREE
1 1HEEF £ BEREE  Furiture Motor ~ KEIRE
Freehold  Landand  Leasehold  Plantand and vehicles Construction @
land buildings improvements  machinery  equipment  and yacht in progress Total
TiEx T TiEx T TiErn T TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZESNE-A-B At 1 January 2009
WeAfFER2AA Cost as previously reported 2,700 104,344 185,401 391,801 156,138 33,211 62,014 935,609
RREBEHERNZ IR Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
(BITF) 2 %4 (Amendment) — 19,605 — - = = = 19,605
BE 2R Cost as restated 2,700 123,949 185,401 391,801 156,138 33,211 62,014 955,214
SHMERAE  MZAHF2H  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment, as previously reported — (9,760) (63,870)  (123,578) (67,532) (8,869) — (273,609)
RREBEHERNZ IR Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
(BiA) 288 (Amendment) - (5,963) - - - - - (5,963)
ZHAERAE  £E3 Accumulated depreciation and
impairment, as restated - (15,723) (63,870)  (123,578) (67,532) (8,869) - (279,572)
REFE L& Net book amount, as restated 2,700 108,226 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 675,642
HE-ZENR Year ended 31 December 2009
tZA=1-ALEE
EYRAFE  MZAHFZH  Opening net book amount, as
previously reported 2,700 94,584 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 662,000
RREBEHERNZ IR Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
(BITF) 2 %4 (Amendment) — 13,642 — - = = = 13,642
ENRERE  £E5 Opening net book amount,
as restated 2,700 108,226 121,531 268,223 88,606 24,342 62,014 675,642
EiZH Exchange differences - 152 561 629 3% 3 347 2,046
RE Additions - 905 10,014 5,711 10,138 1,142 19,887 47,197
R Transfers - 721 46,575 387 - - (47,683) -
HE Disposals - (1,202) (47) (3,026) (1,082) (329) (76) (6,192)
il Depreciation - (3,141) (24.439) (36,874) (36,529) (3,898) — (104,881)
ERREFE Closing net book amount 2,700 105,661 153,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 614,412
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7 ME BERRE-E6®@

7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated

(Continued)
KARE HENR BRRZE REREE
i 1#REF £6  BEREE  Furniture Motor ~ %EIE
Freehold Landand  Leasehold  Plantand and vehicles Construction @t
land buildings improvements  machinery  equipment  and yacht in progress Total
THRT TR THRT TR ThER TER TEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
R-ZZAETZB=+-H  At31 December 2009
WAFER2AA Cost as previously reported 2,700 104,890 240,219 393,272 164,191 33,642 34,489 973,403
RvEREHENZTE Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
(BIAX) 288 (Amendment) - 19,605 - — = = = 19,605
ES| 2B A Cost as restated 2,700 124,495 240,219 393,272 164,191 33,642 34,489 993,008
SHFERAE  MZAMER  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment, as previously
reported - (12,521) (86,454)  (158,222)  (102,734) (12,352) - (372,283)
REREHEINZ R Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
(BiK) 228 (Amendment) - (6313) - - — - — (6:313)
ZHFERAE L& Accumulated depreciation and
impairment, as restated - (18,834) (86,454)  (158,222)  (102,734) (12,352) - (378,596)
REFE S5 Net book amount, as restated 2,700 105,661 153,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 614,412
HE-E2-2F% Year ended 31 December 2010
TZA=t-BLEE
ENREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 92,369 153,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 601,120
FERETERZ S Effect of adoption of HKAS 17
(BTR) 258 (Amendmen) - 13,292 - - - - - 13,292
ENREFE  £EF Opening net book amount,
as restated 2,700 105,661 153,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 614,412
EfRZR Exchange differences - 1,288 5,749 5,852 1,645 194 1,658 16,386
WEKERAR (W35) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 35) - - 384 4,698 368 189 - 5,639
wE Additions - 5,254 9,094 27439 15,160 1,431 7,723 66,101
=5 Transfers - 2,717 6,269 572 83 - (35,641) -
HE Disposals - (5,975) - (213) (341) - - (6,529)
il Depreciation - (3,522) (24,988) (38,736) (30,960 (3,805) - (102,011)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 2,700 131,423 150,273 234,662 47412 19,299 8,229 593,998
R=F-BE+-B=+-H  At31 December 2010
BA Cost 2,700 152,162 262,570 436,965 184,365 35,213 8229 1,082,204
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment - (20739)  (112207)  (202,303)  (136,953) (15,914) - (488,206)
REFE Net book amount 2,700 131,423 150,273 234,662 47412 19,299 8,229 593,998
ZE-ZFFR
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7 ME BERRE-E6H®@ 7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated
(Continued)
KAXBELHNURNERFBEE o Freehold land is located in the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan.
EAHABRBINTER BRI Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income
mE statement is analysed as follows:

—g-g8% -TIhF

2010 2009

TERT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

$HE B Cost of sales 53,468 51,418
—RETHEAX General and administrative expenses 48,543 53,463
102,011 104,881

124 kxE&BEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

8 BEEE-&H

8 Intangible assets - Consolidated

EFB%
B HE Customer @gt
Trademarks Goodwill  relationships Total
TERT TERT TERT TERT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
R-ZEEAE-F—H At 1 January 2009
BA Cost 221,387 52,977 2,219 276,583
2 BERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (5,166) (24,008) (2,219) (31,393)
[ EDEEE Net book amount 216,221 28,969 = 245,190
BZ_ZThf Year ended
TZA=+-HLEE 31 December 2009
FREFE Opening net book amount 216,221 28,969 — 245,190
ERES Exchange differences — 140 — 140
i Amortisation (8,855) — — (8,855)
B Impairment — (15,050) — (15,050)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 207,366 14,059 = 221,425
R-ZZEEAE+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2009
A Cost 221,387 53,117 2,219 276,723
2 BERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (14,021) (39,058) (2,219) (55,298)
REFE Net book amount 207,366 14,059 — 221,425
BE2_E-%& Year ended
+ZA=1+-HLEEE 31 December 2010
FYREREE Opening net book amount 207,366 14,059 — 221,425
ERES Exchange differences — 594 — 594
W B IS 2 =) (HiEE35) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 35) — 33,750 — 33,750
e Amortisation (8,856) — — (8,856)
B Impairment (54,000) — — (54,000)
FRIRMEFE Closing net book amount 144,510 48,403 = 192,913
R-ZE-ZF+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2010
BA Cost 221,387 87,461 2,219 311,067
2 BERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (76,877) (39,058) (2,219) (118,154)
i [ F & Net book amount 144,510 48,403 = 192,913
—EB-BEEH
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BEDRESER-—RETHEAXIAS
62,856,000 T (= & & h &
23,905,000 7T) °

[SEEV-AER

PEEE £ A [Diadoral BR7E F B KB
BB KA EERKEEM S Diadoral B
BHNEROERN BENTEREED
SRAEFTRAFHARAENSHEE
ETNEEET - REZDE  BEN
BEAXRBBAEABENBRERNE
KWARBIE

BE-_Z—ZEZHF+-_HA=+—HLE
B BEMETHREFGERRES
854,000,000 T (ZEZNEF : &) o

BREEPEANIERRNT :

HeRgE 6%
REERZE (HzFa) 5%
Tl BE IR = 13.8%

fida: FMERANKRBERETEBHLER
BHRAERE  WEREAUES
REHUNIRERS ©

HERENH

FEIRERBEXEE I BRGEMES
PTHAEERSELEN - R=ZFE-F
F£+=A=+—H ' 14,653,000t (=
ZZAE : 14,059,00058 T) WEEH D
BEREAEESRIHER > MBH
HERE (CZEZNTF  BERE) Bl
TEERFEAELEEZ2ESHRIER
SEEK IEATZIEREHOEHE
MBEZOHREZEERIINRESEE
BUNERBER BEE-—ZTF+ =
B=+—-HILFE AWBEHEEE
4 533,750,000 TR OB ES A
BRI & v B e AR B 4 A A (FEEE35)
HEALEPBNERBIBESEEEN o
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Intangible assets — Consolidated (Continued)

Amortisation and impairment loss included in general and
administrative expenses amounted to HK$62,856,000 (2009:
HK$23,905,000).

Impairment test for trademarks:

Trademarks represent the rights to use the ‘Diadora’
trademarks for the manufacture and sale of products bearing
the ‘Diadora’ trademarks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. The recoverable amount of the trademarks is
determined by reference to a valuation performed using the
relief from royalty valuation method over their estimated
useful lives. Under this method, the value of the trademarks
represents the present value of the hypothetical royalty
income from licensing out the trademarks.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, an impairment
loss of HK$54,000,000 (2009: Nil) was recognised based on
the impairment assessment performed.

Key assumptions used in the valuation of trademarks are as

follows:
Royalty rate 6%
Long-term growth rate (Note a) 5%

Pre-tax discount rate 13.8%

Note a: The long-term growth rate used does not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the business in which it operates and is
used to extrapolate cash flow beyond the budget period.

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment and geographical location. As
at 31 December 2010, goodwill of HK$14,653,0000 (2009:
HK$14,059,000) is allocated to the sportswear distribution
business in Mainland China and a fully impaired goodwill
(2009: fully impaired) is allocated to the sportswear
distribution and retail business in Shanghai, Mainland China.
These represented the identified groups of CGU within the
distribution and retail segment that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the acquisitions. Goodwill of
HK$33,750,000 arising on the acquisition of Charmtech
Group during the year ended 31 December 2010 is allocated
to the golf and high-end fashion apparel manufacturing
business (Note 35), which is an identified CGU within the
manufacturing segment.



8

4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

BREE-&6tw

REeE4EANTRRSENREER
BEMELLEE - ZSHAEEARE
BEEENSBARK S REREEE
XBREBER D EEBHEN T FHE
BREEMFAENRABRSREBEAR - B
HEHEREMRERB 2 REREN
TXHR2F 2 EERKER - BRERF
BRRSELEMMEEXBNRAT
HERE-

8

Intangible assets — Consolidated (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period for the golf and high-end fashion apparel
manufacturing business and for the sportswear distribution
business. Cash flows beyond the period covered in approved
budgets are extrapolated using the key assumptions stated
below. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the businesses in which the cash-generating
units operate.

—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009
EEXRR
= Ui B i
B & 4 2=
Golf and
high-end
fashion
apparel EBRoHE EEZRoDHE
manufac- Sportswear Sportswear
turing distribution distribution
BEERE Budgeted gross margin 34% 29% 40%
AEEEB L EED Growth rate used to
BERECERE extrapolate cashflows
beyond the budget period 0% 0% 0%
B A B3R = Pre-tax discount rate 11% 11% 9%

EEERBBARAREHTEREN
BREEAEENE -

BE-_Z-ZTF+-_A=+t—HL#EF
B WERSHEXRR IR E
EEBREDRIEEBEREELEEN
BRARE BE-ZEEAFE+=HA=1
—HBEEE EEHARREFEHRE
B BREBDRIERTZEXEBREESE
B8 {v ¥ 52 0%l {8 15,050,000 T * 5T A —
MRATHEX -

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past
development.

performance and its expectations for market

No impairment was recognised in respect of the golf and
high-end fashion apparel manufacturing business CGU and
the sportswear distribution business CGU during the year
ended 31 December 2010. For the year ended 31 December
2009, impairment of HK$15,050,000 was charged against the
sportswear distribution and retail business CGU as a result of
the decrease in forecasted future profitability, which was
included in general and administrative expenses.
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9 HWEBARMNKBRE -AAF 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company

—¥-¥F C-2EhE
2010 2009
TR TH#7

HK$’000 HK$’000

REF LEHRMHD > BEREAAR Investment in unlisted shares, at cost 538,341 538,341
FEUS BT 8 A B & &8 (FiEE(a)) Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (a)) 866,201 833,098

1,404,542 1,371,439

THAR-Z—ZF+=-A=+—HHW The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of which
FTEWBAR (KR LEW)FE are unlisted, as at 31 December 2010:

ERALEER FisiE

EEERER BRTRBRERAFES Interest held TEEEREENY
1 Place of incorporation Particulars of issued “E-2% ZEENE  Principal activities
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2010 2009  and place of operations
EREHERAA XEBRLEE (RLEE)) . 10037 100% 100% EBERAKER/E#
Bowker Asia Limited BRERAR US$100 Trading of garment

British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"), products/Hong Kong

limited liability company

EREREA TR ERAA  HEAE MEBELE 4,199,490% 1t 100% 100% 4£ERKER/TEAE
Bowker Garment Accessories  Mainland China, wholly US$4,199,490 Manufacturing of garment
(Heyuan) Company Limited foreign owned enterprise products/Mainland China
EEARENERLT g4 BREMLT 10,0008 ¢ 100% 100% REERREE
Bowker Garment Hong Kong, HK$10,000 ARER/ER
Accessories Company Limited  limited liability company Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong
ERETE (EF)ERAA  TEAE NEEELE 22,000,000% Tt 85% 85% AERKER/TEKE
Bowker Garment Factory Mainland China, wholly HK$22,000,000 Manufacturing of garment
(Yunfu) Company Limited foreign owned enterprise products/Mainland China
EEAKEARA A BB AREALT 100008 S REE 100% 100% RERKER/E#
Bowker Garment Factory Hong Kong, 200,000 T RE Trading of garment products/
Company Limited limited liability company BEEBRH (WD) Hong Kong
HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000 non-voting
deferred (Note (b))
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HHMBARNKRE -ALQ7 @

&R

Name

EEOER TR ERAA
Bowker Printing Factory
(Heyuan) Company Limited

EEEIRE (TR ERAF
Bowker Sportswear
(Heyuan) Company Limited

ERREERK(ER)ARAA
Bowker Venture Garment
(Yunfu) Company Limited

Bowker (Vietnam) Garment
Factory Company Limited

HEHE (R ARAF
Bowker Vietnam Holding Limited

EERE (BN IXERAH
Bowker Yao Wao (Huizhou)
Garment Company Limited

BERRHRE TR ERAR
Bowker Yee Sing Garment
Factory (Heyuan)
Company Limited

EREERRAA (H535)
Charmtech Industrial Limited
(Note 35)

ERR IR
EEREER

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

MEAKE NERELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

MEKKE MEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

MEKKE MERELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

Hi ERERLR
Vietnam,
limited liability company

g% BREMLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

MEAKE NERELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

PEAE  NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

% EREMRLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

Investments in subsidiaries — Company (Continued)

FrEEmE
BRARBERAFE Interest held
Particulars of issued “E-%f% “EENE
paid up capital 2010 2009
55,508,460 T 100% 100%
HK$55,508,460
13,682,820% 7t 100% 100%
US$13,682,820
80,000,000/ 7t 100% 100%
HK$80,000,000
15,600,000 7t 100% 100%
HK$15,600,000
1,000,0005 7t 100% 100%
HK$1,000,000
16,000,000 7 100% 100%
HK$16,000,000
120,000,000 7t 71% 71%
HK$120,000,000
50,0007 Tt 75% —
HK$50,000

TERBREELE
Principal activities
and place of operations

TEDERNEER/
hEAKE

Manufacturing of printing
and embroidery products/

EERRER/TEAE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

LERKER/THAAKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

LERRER/HE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Vietnam

REERREEAR
Ehm/EH

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

EEARER/PEKAKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

LERKER/TEKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

REERREEAR
ER/ER

Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

9 HMBATGMKRE-AXAT @ 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

AMRIHER i g
EEERER BRTRBERAFE Interest held TEERREENY
£ Place of incorporation Particulars of issued —E-BE ZZENE  Principal activities
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2010 2009  and place of operations
Bl (FR) BRERAT (W30 HEAK  HEBELE 121122428 T 5% TERKER/TEAR
Charmtech (Qing Yuan) Garment Mainland China, wholly HK$12,112,242 Manufacturing of garment
Manufacturing Limited foreign owned enterprise products/Mainland China
(Note 35)
Corus Investments Limited 8 BRERL 10,0008 T #100% NERE/BR
Hong Kong, HK$10,000 Property holding/Hong Kong
limited liability company
BESHRERR (R MEAKE AERELE AE%100,000,0007 60% BERKER/THAAKE
BRAR Mainland China, wholly RMB100,000,000 Trading of garment
Diadora Sportswear foreign owned enterprise products/Mainland China
(Shenzhen) Limited
ENEERERRARLTY  HEAE HEEELR 20,000,000% 7t 75% BERZEARER/
Guangzhou Win Sports Ltd. Mainland China, wholly HK$20,000,000 A B
foreign owned enterprise Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China
ENTHREEKERAR hEAKE AERELE 1,000,000% 7t 70% LERKER/THAE
Guangzhou Yuming Mainland China, wholly HK$1,000,000 Manufacturing of garment
Garment Limited foreign owned enterprise products/Mainland China
RYXESHEERLT hEAKE NERELE 5,025,102% 10 100% LEREESER/DERE
Kaiping Win Hanverky Mainland China, wholly US$5,025,102 Manufacturing and trading of
Textile Company Limited foreign owned enterprise fabrics/Mainland China
Portico Il Limited nex EREED 1007 100% RUREES/ MEX
Canada, CA$100 Provision of agency service/
limited liability company Canada
BE(EBERAT (MHE34) FE ERERLH 10,00078 7t 70% BEAKER/BR
Rich Form (HK) Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 Trading of garment
(Note 34) limited liability company products/Hong Kong
EFTEARKEAERLE  PEAE . HERELE 550,000% 7t 72.1% EERKER/TEAKE
Sport City Garment Mainland China, foreign US$550,000 Manufacturing of garment
Factory Company Limited equity joint venture products/Mainland China
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

&R

Name

EBHERAA
Sport Corners Limited

RERARR (R ERAR
Team & Sports
(Shenzhen) Ltd.

REXATERAR
Team & Sports Limited

XHERAA
Win Form Apparel Limited

XE(HE ERAR
Win Hanverky (China)
Company Limited

XERE (BR)ERLA
Win Hanverky Limited

XEHBRRAA
Win Hanverky Textile Limited

EERFARES (L8)
ERAR

Win Sports Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

9 HHBARMNKRE -XAT @

ERR IR
EEREER

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

% BEREMLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

MEKKE MEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

% EREALT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

% EREMRLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

EE ERELLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

g% BEREMLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

g% BREMLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

HEAE  MEBELE
Mainland China, wholly
foreign owned enterprise

ERTRARRARR

Particulars of issued
paid up capital

500,000 7t
HK$500,000

AR 5,000,000
RMB5,000,000

900,000 70
HK$900,000

10,000 1t
HK$10,000

10,000 1t
HK$10,000

10,000% T S REE

1,000,000 T & F
BEEBRE (3 ()

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$1,000,000 non-voting
deferred (Note (b))

2,000,000/ 7t
HK$2,000,000

5,000,000/% 7t
HK$5,000,000

iEsdie
Interest held

Zg-%F  -EIAE
2010 2009
75% 75%
60% 60%
60% 60%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
75% 75%

Investments in subsidiaries — Company (Continued)

TERBREELE
Principal activities
and place of operations

ZEEDRER/BR
Retailing of garment
products/Hong Kong

BERKER/TEAE
Trading of garment
products/Mainland China

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

BERRER/BR
Trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

LEREEHER/
BARBEKAKE
Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Hong Kong
and Mainland China

EERZEAKER/
hE KK

Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

—EB-BEEH
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

9 HMBATGMKRE-AXAT @ 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)
EMR ISR FisiE
AEERER BRIRATRAFE Interest held TEERREENY
£ Place of incorporation Particulars of issued —E-BE ZZENE  Principal activities
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2010 2009  and place of operations
XEEBERAT % EREMLT 260,000,003% T 60% 60% REZR/EE
Winor International Hong Kong, HK$260,000,003 Investment holding/
Company Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
ENDERERERAR PEAE NEBELE 86,292,165% 7t 100% 100% 4ERKER/THAE
Wuzhou Bowker Mainland China, wholly HK$86,292,165 Manufacturing of garment

Garment Company Limited foreign owned enterprise products/Mainland China

#

ZARNRDAARTEELSE  Hit
A AREEESS -

#

The shares of this company are held directly by the Company;
others are held indirectly by the Company.

Mt - Notes:

(a) EWKHBATDZKEAADTCIEEKNBS (a) Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by the
ATFEMHEWRARRE » BIRAD LK Company to the respective subsidiaries and are measured in
BEARRBRENEHBESE o accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for

investments in subsidiaries.

b)) ERERELERDYFERAERFTE (b) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
BoZZRHITERERE  BRIEFELD These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends
B B9 41 7 1 100,000,000,0005 7T » & unless the net profit of the relevant company exceeds
BEEEERE  MERIEEELATD HK$100,000,000,000 and are not entitled to any distributions

B R IEE AE 5 E100,000,000,000 upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has been
BT BERBELEESEZEWNESIR distributed by the relevant company to the holders of its ordinary
shares.

(c) RBZE=Z-ZE+-A=+—-HLF (c) None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any

EEAER - WEQRYEEMCRT
BEER (Z2ENE  H) -

ETHEBRAIAREBEXRENEH
AASEERBRBEANTXERE
NEFERRL °

time during the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best

effort by the management of the Group to translate their

Chinese names as they do not have official English names.
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

10 REEE DRz iR — A6 10 Interests in associates - Consolidated

—¥-¥F C-2hE

2010 2009
THET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
F1) Beginning of the year 27,044 23,851
2R 8 IR A 18 0 Increase in share capital subscribed 2,388 —
FROGREEZD Share of reserve movements for the year 639 278
FRDIMHRF Share of profits for the year 2,036 2,915
FH End of the year 32,107 27,044
UTAER=ZZE—2FE+=-A=1+—HXK The following are details of the Group’s associates, all of
EEBE LT (HARLESD) WEFES which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2010:
EMRIHER BEfERE
TERBER BROTRBERAHS Interest held indirectly ~ FEXBREEHH
£# Place of incorporation Particulars of issued Z8-%F  ZETAE  Principal activities
Name and type of legal entity paid up capital 2010 2009  and place of operations
EEEEFEES (TR HEAE  MERELE 7,670,000% 7t 30% 0% HRORRMBE/ HEKRE
BRAR Mainland China, wholly US$7,670,000 Fabrics dyeing and supply/
Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing foreign owned enterprise Mainland China
Factory (Heyuan)
Company Limited
ERREERAR EaBE BREMLA 7,820,000% 7t 30% 0% REERRHRDER
Fu Hsun Investment BVI, limited liability company  US$7,820,000 i/ a8
Company Limited Investment holding and
fabrics dyeing and
supply/Taiwan
Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited BZEHE  EREAAF 2,900,000% 7T 30% 0% REAH/BE
BVI, limited liability company ~ US$2,900,000 Sourcing of fabrics/Taiwan
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

10 REEZE DAz iR - a6t

11

AEEREHELANEE BE W&
REGEWMT

10 Interests in associates — Consolidated (Continued)

The Group’s shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and
results of the associates are as follows:

—E-ZF CZEENE

2010 2009

FERT FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BE Assets 48,947 40,163
=L Liabilities 16,840 13,119
& Revenue 80,520 77,803
FERA Profit for the year 2,036 2,915

ARHESREE - &6

11 Available-for-sale financial assets — Consolidated

—E-2F CZEEZNE

2010 2009

TER TER

HK$’000 HK$°000

®n—HA—H At 1 January 500 6,370
W B Mt 88 2 7] (Ffd5£ 35) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) 780 —
HE Disposal (780) _
VRS Impairment — (5,870)
B+=—BA=+-—H At 31 December 500 500

AEEEE - FRREEFMALAEL
mAE10%MKE - ZARIREBREE
BREREBRNEZTESE - ZRE
UERHIEBE 2EATHEESRE
E-BE-F-ZTF+-A=+—-HL
FE UTEBRTAREESR #BZE=
EENFTA=+—HLEEE BE
ERNRAIARBRE N RERIBEESE
5,870,000 jT - 3 5t A — % K 17 Bt B
ﬁo

EEEE A EB SO (MEE35) BN
AREHECREERNERERNRT
BEMBBRITEBEUAZHEN=F1E
FHHRE - BE-E-ZE+ZA=
T-RALEE ZSAHRHESREE
DEAREELE -

AEEBEERBERRA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The Group has a 10% equity interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in the United States of America (“USA”), which
is engaged in the design and distribution of active wear and
sportswear in the USA. This investment is denominated in
United States Dollars and is classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. No impairment loss was recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2010. During the year ended 31
December 2009, an impairment loss of HK$5,870,000 was
recognised as a result of the decrease in future profitability of
the investee company and has been included in general and
administrative expenses.

The available-for-sale financial assets acquired in the
business combination of Charmtech Group (Note 35)
linked
denominated in United States Dollars purchased from a bank

represented three-year index investments
for securing banking facilities granted. These available-for-
sale financial assets were disposed of during the year ended

31 December 2010 at their carrying value.
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BE

12 8 - 2 b 12

ZZE—ZTF+ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

Inventories — Consolidated

—¥-¥F C-2hE

2010 2009

FET TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

R 1 8 Raw materials 211,723 150,734
EE8EAR Work in progress 88,522 65,356
S mh Finished goods 209,542 251,603

509,787 467,693

T8 M A#2,339,483,0008 T (ZEF
HE : 2,095,651,0005% T ) 25 H
X YEFABERA -

FEREREREFHENE4414,0008
T (ZEZNhE . #15439,0008 ) ' E
ST ASHER A o

The costs of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$2,339,483,000 (2009: HK$2,095,651,000).

Net write-back of provision for impairment of inventories
amounting to approximately HK$4,414,000 (2009: provision
of HK$439,000) was included in cost of sales.

—2-BEEH
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

1BEREZRAREE - &6

13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated

—B2-2F C—ZTNF

2010 2009

TERT FTHET

HK$’°000 HK$’000

R E 5 iR Trade receivables

—-RBEHE= — from third parties 577,166 539,055

— R EREEES (H5E36(d)) — from related parties (Note 36(d)) 4,406 12,745
rEWEE Bills receivable 16,561 21,631
598,133 573,431
WO ERE Less: provision for impairment (29,473) (33,063)
568,660 540,368

BUEZERARFERAEERSEND

FEMESE -

BUESHEARIZREAARFFER
BNEF AREOHEEFRENGE
BN FI0E0K - FEBENHEERP D
DRtk mRET MANMEEFNHE
fi£ AR AT 3 B9 5 IR ST Y S A SR AT 3%
HONRXHEE - BREZRIARE

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable

approximate their fair values.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers having an

appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers
credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. Most of the Group’s
sales are on open account, while sales made to a small

number of customers are covered by letters of credit issued

by banks or settled by documents against payment issued by

BHIREBRTOT - banks. The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable is as
follows:

—E-2F CZEEZNE
2010 2009
THER FTHER
HK$'000  HK$'000
0Z£30Xk 0 — 30 days 247,163 177,116
31 260X 31 — 60 days 206,678 182,670
61290k 61 — 90 days 105,054 166,952
91£120K 91 — 120 days 7,226 13,467
1212180k 121 — 180 days 3,580 5,217
181£ 365K 181 — 365 days 3,100 9,947
365K LA Over 365 days 25,332 18,062
598,133 573,431
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

1B3ERESRAREE -46w

13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

ERESERABBDLRIOR —RARME
RE R-—ZF-—ZFTF+-A=+—-H"
BHBEBIORBRARERNEZERES
1R X A 1,570,000 T (Z B F A F
985,000/ 7t) » LLEEE T EA I ¥ X
EHRNEFAR ZEZRKESRAN
BHREBDTNT ¢

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are
generally not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2010,
trade receivables of HK$1,570,000 (2009: HK$985,000) were
more than 90 days past due but considered not to be
impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The past due ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

“E2-%BF C_—EZThF

2010 2009

THER TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

91£ 120K 91 — 120 days 1,009 645
1212180k 121 — 180 days 425 179
181& 365K 181 — 365 days 136 159
365K KL E Over 365 days — 2
1,570 985

R-ZE-ZF+-A=1+—-H  BRE
TEHEEBREZ2EREZRRA
29,473,000 BT (ZZEZ N &
33,063,000/ 7T) - ZEEWIRFEEE T
EF (BREEBRERBZRERNE 2%
F) BB o %% & IR X &Y 8 H iR e a0
T

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of
HK$29,473,000 (2009: HK$33,063,000) were impaired and
had been fully provided for. These receivables relate to a
number of customers, including customers in unexpected
difficult economic situations. The past due ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

“E2-%BF C_—EZThF

2010 2009

TR TEx

HK$’000 HK$’'000

0£30Xk 0 — 30 days —_ 46
31£60XK 31 - 60 days 51 92
61£90X 61 — 90 days 396 48
91£120K 91 — 120 days 401 633
1212 180K 121 — 180 days 990 4,397
1812 365X 181 — 365 days 2,313 9,787
365K ML £ Over 365 days 25,322 18,060
29,473 33,063
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

13ERESRRREE -S6t@ 13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

EREZERREENHEREZESN Movements of provision for impairment of trade and bills
T receivable are as follows:

—E-ZF CZEENE

2010 2009

TET FTHET

HK$°000 HK$’000

F4 Beginning of the year 33,063 25,018

EHER Exchange differences 968 508

(@) ORERETEEE (Write-back of)/provision for impairment, net (4,170) 9,066
FRMBEERIEN Receivables written off during the year

FE U iR 5K as uncollectible (388) (1,529)

FR End of the year 29,473 33,063

ERERKEARBENERRBREE T The creation and release of provision for impaired

A—MRRTBEREX - ABBRENE receivables have been included in general and administrative

BRNE A YR RSN R & R o expenses. Amounts charged to the allowance account are

written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

AEENEREZERREBUATIE The Group’s trade and bills receivable were denominated in
MEE the following currencies:

—¥-¥F C-2EhE

2010 2009

TERT FTHER

HK$’°000 HK$’000

E United States Dollars 447,957 372,161
RE AR Chinese Renminbi 132,866 193,060
B JT Hong Kong Dollars 17,202 8,210
Hth Others 108 —

598,133 573,431

RBEERHBEANGEERKR A LMEL The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
RRANAFEE  REFIJBEFFEME the fair value of the receivables mentioned above. The Group
e does not hold any collateral.
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

14 & - ARNREREMERIER 14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

a6 NN
Consolidated Company
Z2-%F “EZINF ZB-BF -ZTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009

TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

b Current
AREHE Tax recoverable 384 1,971 - 435
e kEERARHEMES Rental, utility and other deposits 23,114 18,272 - =
EEMAINBELRE Prepayments for operating expenses 5,542 5,543 198 245
BEMNENRE Prepayments for inventories 10,929 5,450 = =
] U [E] (B Value-added tax recoverable 6,781 10,379 — =
BREFHNEE Claims receivable from customers 9,370 3,383 = =
HH 5 Tax reserve certificate 22,794 = = =
H b FE IR 3R () Other receivables (Note) 9,556 13,538 - —
88,470 58,536 198 680
BE - B RIERE M FEWRIR R EEE The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
BENAFEMEE - RBEBZANE receivables approximate their fair values. The maximum
ERBALMRBENATLE AEEIL exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
BEEEAERR - the items mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral.
AEBWEMERIERUATIE T The Group’s other receivables were denominated in the
B following currencies:
—E-2F CZEEZNFE
2010 2009
TER TAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
E United States Dollars 17,325 8,573
FEAR®E Chinese Renminbi 19,106 24,257
B JT Hong Kong Dollars 33,019 13,693
Hth Others 2,549 1,020

71,999 47,543
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14 8% AAREREMGEKRK

(&)
FiaE -

RZZ-ZF+=-A=1+—0 ' HERIKRR
BREEEMBLRAEREENERIKX
4,872,000 T - R=ZZHFNA » *&KE
2 &t E D FTeam & Sports (BVI) Limited
AR B #997,383,0008 T (AIRIBREFTHE
AR ([RE]) 2 KRR T UAFE) HER
RE25%ME » BURIERA D BARARX
T BEEZ-ZE—ZFo

REBE-Z-TH5+-A=1+-HLFE &
EEEFTGERERENBLARANERRE
MEREARBRREERMEDSTEA - R
It EWRERERSES L A11,2860008
T BEBAFEFAHLMBENSEERRD
10,031,000/ T » Mt A S HFIERRA ©

KEEBERARALA
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (Continued)

Note:

Included in other receivables as at 31 December 2010 was the
receivable from disposal of interest in a subsidiary of HK$4,872,000.
In September 2005, Team & Sports (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, disposed of a 25% equity interest in Team &
Sports Limited (“T&S”) for a consideration of approximately
HK$97,383,000 (subject to adjustments based on future revenues of
T&S), receivable by instalments through 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group reassessed the
post disposal performance of T&S and its subsidiaries, and the actual
post disposal performance were lower than the initial forecasts at the
date of disposal. Consequently, an impairment loss on the
consideration receivable totalling HK$11,286,000 was charged to the
consolidated income statement, including HK$10,031,000 being
released from other reserves.
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

15 BEARTER EEHRE 15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with initial

B=EAZRTER BAER
ReEEY

terms of over three months/Cash and cash
equivalents

a6 NN
Consolidated Company

—2-%F —TINF —¥-¥F -IINF

2010 2009 2010 2009

TR TER TER TER

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000

EHEFRITER Pledged bank deposits 1,184 — — —
EEHREB=EAZ Bank deposits with initial terms

IRITER of over three months 18,866 24,572 — —

RTKRFHERSE Cash at bank and on hand 26,831 23,534 43 180

EHRTFER Short-term bank deposits 737,143 625,959 — —

763,974 649,493 43 180

784,024 674,065 43 180

R-ZE-ZF+-A=1+—H UFH
ARBITENRITIFNA1,184,000% T
(ZZ2ENEF  BERBRRBRT A
RIBRTETEZREGENRKAR -
R-ZE-ZHE+-_A=+—-H %EF
REMEF G EREA3.3% °

RZB-ZHE+-_A=+—-H ££EH
REMREB=(H ZRTFRMEF
HERNEEB2I%(ZEENEFE  FHR
0.9%) ° RERTERMEFIFRELN
B11%(ZEENE  £RE05%) o
HETERNEREAE=ZEAZUT -

Bank deposits, which were denominated in Chinese
Renminbi, of HK$1,184,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil)
were placed in a bank as collaterals against certain trade
finance facilities granted by a bank. The weighted average
interest rate on these deposits was 3.3% per annum at 31
December 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, the weighted average interest rate
of the Group’s bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months was 2.3% per annum (2009: 0.9% per annum). The
weighted average interest rate of short-term bank deposits
was 1.1% per annum (2009: 0.5% per annum). The short-
term bank deposits have maturities of 3 months or less at
inception.
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with initial

terms of over three months/Cash and cash
equivalents (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months and cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

CRiii b/
Consolidated Company
—B-%F —TEINF -B-BF —TENF
2010 2009 2010 2009

TER TER TER TER
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000

E United States Dollars 414,655 406,379 — —
RE A R Chinese Renminbi 353,892 241,851 — —
& TT Hong Kong Dollars 14,792 23,550 43 180
Hh Others 685 2,285 — —

784,024 674,065 43 180

AEBUTEARBFENCERRT
EFR/REHREB=MAZRITER
URBEERACEBUERRPEAE
MRTT - REZZPEARBERRIN
BURSESEHPEAESIZPEK
BERFREMNIEETEERRER
RE o

RESAHNEAFERRECERR
TER/REHREB=EAZRIE
HURBERBESESEYNIREEMR

e

= o

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial
terms of over three months and cash and cash equivalents
denominated in Chinese Renminbi were deposited with banks
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of
Chinese Renminbi into foreign currencies and the remittance
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China Government.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
approximates the carrying values of the pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months and the cash and cash equivalents.
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16 BB Z IR

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

ZE-456f 16 Trade and bills payable - Consolidated

—g-2F -TIhF
2010 2009

FH 7 F# 7
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT E SR Trade payables
—-FE=F — to third parties 266,248 233,741
— T EAEE S (FIEE36(d) — to related parties (Note 36(d)) 24,260 33,147
EBAEE Bills payable 42,150 2,174
332,658 269,062
ENEZEAREENIRROMAOT The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payable is as
follows:
—E-25 CZEZEEBNE
2010 2009
THER THET
HK$°000 HK$’000
02 30K 0 — 30 days 167,222 146,687
31£260XK 31 — 60 days 104,195 83,057
61£90K 61 — 90 days 37,508 32,005
91£ 120K 91 — 120 days 14,156 3,934
1212180k 121 — 180 days 6,648 346
181£ 365K 181 — 365 days 1,832 949
365K LA & Over 365 days 1,097 2,084
332,658 269,062
AEBNESESRRREEUTIE The Group’s trade and bills payable were denominated in the
HIE following currencies:
—B2-2F C—ZTTNF
2010 2009
TERT FTERT
HK$'000  HK$'000
E United States Dollars 183,797 144,783
BT Hong Kong Dollars 81,999 78,439
HEARY Chinese Renminbi 66,862 45,840

332,658 269,062
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

17 FESTHIR R H 4 FE {3 1R =X

17 Accruals and other payables

=X b
Consolidated Company
“E-2F “ZETRE ZEB-ZF ZEThE
2010 2009 2010 2009
TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1 & 38 7l 2< FE 51 1R X Accrual for employment
benefit costs 109,812 85,515 3,547 4,538
BNEEREE Royalty payable 5,494 7,421 — —
FEfT 1B E R Value added tax payable 8,551 9,831 — —
EREFES Deposits received from customers 14,483 5,581 — —
Hit & E R X EHIRR Accrual for other
operating expenses 52,725 42,451 400 3,330
FEstmiEHEE Accrued marketing, advertising
BEREERS and promotion expenses 1,212 3,544 — —
BEYE - K Payable for purchases of property,
R 3% 45 R FE (S IR K plant and equipment 7,888 8,114 — —
WEHE DR EAKE Consideration payable for
(B &£ 35) acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 35) 30,750 — — —
H A FE A3 IR FX Other payables 8,775 5,350 1 2
239,690 167,807 3,948 7,870
18 EE - &6t 18 Borrowings - Consolidated
—E-FF CZEZEEZNFE
2010 2009
TER FTHET
HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5 Current
FHRTER Short-term bank loans 41,440 68,160
ERBBEORTER Trust receipts import bank loans 3,643 —
45,083 68,160

AEEFREECR-FREER -BAR
MENFEIFEKR  QEHEENIR

HEHEEQFERE -

All of the Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.
The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings

approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

144 Xk EZ&BEERERLA
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18 R —&6w

RZB-ZE+-A=+—-H SHR
TE 3 41,440,0008 T (ZEZNF
39,760,000/ 7t) R EEWIBEDRITE
73,643,0008 T (ZSENF : B)HAE
DERENEEERT LKA o

WEREUTHERE :

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

18 Borrowings — Consolidated (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, short-term bank loans of
HK$41,440,000 (2009: HK$39,760,000) and trust receipts
import bank loans of HK$3,643,000 (2009: Nil) were secured
by a corporate guarantee given by the Company.

The borrowings were denominated in the following

currencies:

—E2-%F C"EZThF

2010 2009

FTERT FTERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FREARY Chinese Renminbi 41,440 68,160
E United States Dollars 3,643 —
45,083 68,160

R-E-ZH5+-A=+—-H: x5HE
#9 5 & 533,243,000 T (ZEENF :
28,400,000 7t) & HIRTFHE XL -
REFEBNMETLY (F) FMEMOT

BHRTER

Short-term bank loans

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s borrowings of
HK$33,243,000 (2009: HK$28,400,000) were on floating
rates. The weighted average interest rates (per annum) at the
balance sheet date were as follows:

ERWEEORTER Trust receipts import

bank loan

—%-% —BEAE
2010 2009
AR¥ £57 AR¥ £57
RMB Us$ RMB uss$
5.6% — 5.1% =
= 1.8% = =

R-ZZ2-Z2F+-A=+—-0  x&H

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has the following

MARBABITEENT : undrawn banking facilities:
—E-2F CZEEZNFE
2010 2009
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERIE Floating rates
- R—FREH — expiring within one year 309,726 371,545

R-FERIBNEERFERE AR

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
“E--FZEEBHENER -

subject to review at various dates during 2011.
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

19 BEERMEBH -6 19 Deferred income tax - Consolidated
EEMBHEEREBENTENHBE Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
EEHNBHEEEESEEANEHIE there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
HERELEMESHMEBERE —B KR EE against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
B FAEARESE c RIEBFHMT ¢ taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction. The net amounts are

as follows:

—g-8F -TTIhF

2010 2009
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFBEE : Deferred tax assets:
— 1218 B & W B 7Y — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
FEEFBEE after more than 12 months 4,745 10,950
— 1218 B AUk E £ — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EERIEBEEE within 12 months 4,393 6,481
9,138 17,431
FEEREEE : Deferred tax liabilities:
- 12BRREEW — Deferred tax liabilities to be
EERBEE settled after more than 12 months (4,954) (1,816)
- NREBREEN — Deferred tax liabilities to be
EEBEEE settled within 12 months (268) (279)
(5,222) (2,095)
EEBIEEE - F8 Deferred tax assets — net 3,916 15,336
EEFSHHIEE S FHMOT ! The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
—E-ZF CZZEhF
2010 2009
FTE T TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
=230 Beginning of the year 15,336 3,179
WEE—RKMB L (MfEE35)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) (30) —
EHER Exchange differences 258 8
RABRER (FEE27) Recognised in the income statement (Note 27) (11,648) 12,149
FH8K End of the year 3,916 15,336

146 *EZEBEERBRAE
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19 EEFRBHR-E0 @

EEBERERERD R RA—H
BALRENTREHHRE) NT

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated (Continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

ELEHREBEEE Deferred tax liabilities:
RO EEF
B M
Withholding
RIS E tax on
Tax undistributed st
depreciation earnings Total
TET THER THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZEZENFEF-—H—H At 1 January 2009 (4,714) (610) (5,324)
RFERER Recognised in the
income statement 1,179 — 1,179
RZZEZEAE+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2009 (3,535) (610) (4,145)
W B — R Bt B 2 = (MY 5£35) Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 35) (30) — (30)
RFERER Recognised in the
income statement (709) (2,619) (3,328)
R-ZZE-FE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2010 (4,274) (3,229) (7,503)
—EB-BEEH
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

19 BEEFMBH -0 @ 19 Deferred income tax - Consolidated (Continued)
EEMEEE . Deferred tax assets:
REH
BEER i Al
Tax  Unrealised Hit #at
losses profit Others Total
FTHET FTAERT FTHET FTHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
R=ZZZh&E—-HF—H At1 January 2009 1,321 6,411 771 8,503
RAERER Recognised in the
income statement 11,049 (153) 74 10,970
[E & =58 Exchange differences 8 — — 8
R-ZBENE At 31 December 2009 12,378 6,258 845 19,481
+=—A=+-—H
RABERER Recognised in the
income statement (7,740) (1,365) 785 (8,320)
EHZER Exchange differences 258 — — 258
RZIE-—ZF At 31 December 2010 4,896 4,893 1,630 11,419
+=—A=+-—H

fid BB A EEE ERFRA - BIAAT RIS E
EBUERAEBEREANRND I BEIRE
EFEHEE R-ZT—ZFE+-A=+
— B REE I HE5E 489,101,000
T (ZZZENE : 374,665,000/8 70) R
A AR S R R ER B A IR 88
% E103,535,0008 T (ZEZAF
76,475,000/ 1) ° i RERHBEEL
%8 220,467,000%8 T (= ZF N §F
202,249,000/ 7t ) AT LU R BR 4588 - 1M
25 B 55518 268,634,000 T (ZEE
AE 172,416,000 ) SR EFERZ
H o

HRETHBLAREEEBRNA R K
BEZNBLARAZEAEERFERR
E HUBRZERFENSZENSE
RIELFTBH &8 E4,288,0008 T (=F
TNE 1 3,975,0008TT) c R=ZE—F
F+-A=+—HB MARLEEBIEH
% 85,769,000 T (= EF N F
79,506,00078 7T) °

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2010, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$103,535,000 (2009:
HK$76,475,000) in respect of losses amounting to
HK$489,101,000 (2009: HK$374,665,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. Total unrecognised tax
losses of HK$220,467,000 (2009: HK$202,249,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely; while cumulative tax losses of
HK$268,634,000 (2009: HK$172,416,000) will expire within
five years.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$4,288,000 (2009:
HK$3,975,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries, as it is management’s intention to
reinvest such amounts in the foreseeable future. Unremitted
earnings totalled HK$85,769,000 at 31 December 2010
(2009: HK$79,506,000).
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

20 A& 20 Share capital
R+=A=+—-A8
As at 31 December
—E-ZF CZEBETNE
2010 2009
THER TAET
HK$°000 HK$°000
EE Authorised
3,000,000,000% & & I 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 300,000 300,000
BREME0IET
EZEREE
Number of
ordinary
shares
TR FTERT
’000 HK$’000
ERITRAE Issued and fully paid up
RZEZENE - ZBZENER At 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010 1,268,400 126,840
—E-ZEf+=ZRB=+—H
BRE Share options
RABRENMEERESENT ¢ The Company operates two share option schemes as

(i)

BRORERMBRESTS

HRETESR—EBEBALEE
R MAQAAEAEEREERA
HERANBRE R-_ZSZTRF
AARREEIRD R E R A RE
st & - $% H44,400,00010 B8 IR #E
ARER114BTE2.28B TSN
BERABEAATRD - RIBFETH
HEXR HEBRER_-ZZRE
E_EENE=ZFAEE IR
E-AFREATRHEH - AEEW
BEZESEENETURESERR
BELEERE REBRALHE
RABRESE  ADAFTER
HERINE R AE o

described below:

(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pre-IPO share options were granted by the Company to
certain directors and a consultant for their services to the
Group. In 2006, the Company granted 44,400,000
options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme to
subscribe for shares in the Company at prices ranging
from HK$1.14 to HK$2.28 per share. These options
vested according to a pre-determined schedule over
three years from 2006 to 2008 and will expire on 10 May
2016. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle these options in cash. No
additional options can be granted under the Pre-IPO
share option scheme.

—EB-BEEH
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

20 B )
B IR (@)

(i) BRES

20 Share capital (Continued)

Share options (Continued)

(ii) Share option scheme

RAREMN—BEAIB10FE E=F
—ANENABBNBRESTSE > A
EERERTAMNES  EE - HE
BBF - fER  RBA 5%
ABRAEEEERECDE - THEE
HEZERE  HEFATERRNER
HE; (I1BBHERBMERARA
(B RRERAM (Bhe%
B)BREMNBBRRATHERKS
B RONBEBIMRBEREA
M LEEXARENARKTE
WRAGEHUTENRSE - A&
BYRLEIHEENETUNRSHE
GEE Chglid=1:- 3% 30

RITEBEREHE R EBNMEFIST

The Company has adopted a share option scheme, which
will remain in force for 10 years up to August 2016. Share
options may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group. The exercise price is
determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
higher of (i) the nominal value of a share; (ii) the closing
price of one share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer, which shall be a
business day; and (iii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
these options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

HEESHWT : their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
“E-2 —EBNE
2010 2009
BRY¥H BRY¥H
TEE TEE
Average Average
exercise exercise
price B AR R price B AR R
per share Options per share Options
BT T % BT 6
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
R—A—H At 1 January 1.466 21,000 1.505 22,500
2R Lapsed — — 2.060 (1,500)
R+=—BA=+—H At 31 December 1.466 21,000 1.466 21,000
R+-—BA=+—B7A{7f&E Exercisable at
31 December 1.466 21,000 1.466 21,000

150 kxE&EEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

20 B @)
BRE @

(i) BRES (5

20 Share capital (Continued)

REKARTEBRENIHAAR

Share options (Continued)

(ii) Share option scheme (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the

TEENT : following expiry dates and exercise prices:
B R R
BRTEE Share options

2 H3 B B Expiry date Exercise price —Z—ZfF Z—ZTHEF
per share 2010 2009
BT aav) )
HK$ ’000 000
—E-AERAF+H 10 May 2016 1.140 9,000 9,000
—E2-X"FRABTH 10 May 2016 1.596 10,000 10,000
—E-XERATH 10 May 2016 2.280 2,000 2,000
21,000 21,000

REBZE-Z-ZF+=-A=1+—H
LEE  WEREHABRIOBRE
MERERAN(ZZEZENF

322,000/ 7t) °

No share option cost was charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December

2010 (2009: HK$322,000).

—EB-BEEH
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

21 #1E 21 Reserves
(a) & B (a) Consolidated
R EERE
DECT Statutory pegg
RHEE  Share-based reserve Foreign Afff REEA
Share payment (&) currency Other Retained @it
premium reserves (Note) translation reserves earnings Total
THR TEn THR THAR TEn THR THAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZEAE-F-H  At1January 2009 666,939 10,050 3,481 66,033 199,351 712,298 1,658,152
EMREER Currency translation differences
-1£H - Group = = = 99 = = 9
-BENT - Associates - - — 278 = = 278
BE-ZHBAGESE  Change in estimated consideration
RUFERES receivable from non-controlling
2 RELS interests in relation to disposal
(M 14) of interest in a subsidary (Note 14) - - - - (8901) - (8901)
EERRENE Employee share option scheme
-RERRENEE — value of services in respect of
A EE (K320 share options granted (Note 20) - 32 = - - - 32
-5WBRENEE - value of services in respect of
Hf5 EME (& 20) share options lapsed (Note 20) — (1,090) = — - 1,090 -
EfRE Dividend paid
-Z23)\ %8 - 2008 inal - - - - - (10047)  (10.47)
-ZEENERY - 2009 interm - - - - — M) o)
ARAREREA Profit atiributable to equity
LA holders of the Company — - = — - 121,539 121,539
ERZAERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 1,098 - - (1,098) -
RZBENE At 31 December 2009 666,939 9,282 4,579 66,410 190,450 791,972 1,729,632
t-B=1-H
EMREER Currency translation differences
-%&8 - Growp - - - 2,0 - - 2,0%
-BENT - Associates - - — 639 = = 639
BE-ZHBAGESE  Seitlement of consideration
RUFERES receivable from non-controlling
REGE interests in relation to disposal
(HizE14) of interest in a subsidiary (Note 14) - - - = 10,031 = 10,031
EfRE Dividend paid
-ZERNERE - 2009 inal - - - - - (190%8)  (19.026)
-ZZ-SERBREA - 2010interim and special - - - - - (48,199) (48,199)
ARAREREA Profit atiributable to equity
s A holders of the Company — - = — - 120472 120472
ERZEERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 4,464 - - (4,464) -
RZZ-%% At 31 December 2010 666,939 9,282 9,043 89,084 200,481 840,755 1,815,584
+ZR=1-8
B Representing:
BE-T-3ERY Proposed 2010 final and
REFIRE special dividends 38,052
At Others 802,703
840,755

KEEBEERARLA
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21 B @

(a) &6t @)

Bt

'lz'l_l|r'

BREFBEAENRG - AAFRPE K
BERIREENHNBLARARERES
EFEEMLERBRHEBEFESE
HEBRBRZEFNBIBA-—RBERLD
XBRES - —REBRTREEHEBE
FEBERBTAR MEXBFRES
ARERRES RBE-Z2-ZFF+
ZHA=+—HLEFE - 4,464,000% T
(ZZZRF 11,098,000 T) BEHERE
—REGRLEXERES -

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

21 Reserves (Continued)

(a) Consolidated (Continued)

Note:

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior years’ losses) to the general reserve and the
enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. The general reserve can be
utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance
of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be
utilised for the development of business operations. During the
year ended 31 December 2010, HK$4,464,000 (2009:
HK$1,098,000) was appropriated to the general reserve and the
enterprise expansion fund.

—EB-BEEH
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

21 f#&E @ 21 Reserves (Continued)
(b) XA (b) Company
DY
A
Share-
KB EE based HERE RERA
Share payment Contributed Retained &t
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
TET ThAx TR TET TaEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZAF-F-H  At1January 2009 666,939 10,050 528,331 53,799 1,259,119
EERRESE Employee share option scheme
-REBRENRE - value of services in respect
R E & (Hi5t20) of share options granted (Note 20) - 322 = - 322
- RNBRENRE - value of services in respect
R EE (MfzE20) of share options lapsed (Note 20) - (1,090) = 1,090 —
ARAREREA Profit attributable to equity
FEfba A holders of the Company — — — 19,810 19,810
ERRE Dividend paid
-ZEENERHY - 2008 final - - - (10,147) (10,147)
-ZEEAERH - 2009 interim = = = (31,710) (31,710)
R-BE2h%E At 31 December 2009 666,939 9,282 528,331 32,842 1,237,3%
t-B=1-H
RAAREREA Profit attributable to
FE{5 &R equity holders of the Company - - = 101,571 101,571
ERRE Dividend paid
-ZERENERHY - 2009 final — — — (19,026) (19,026)
~ZZ-ZERHRER - 2010 interim and special - - - (48,199) (48,199)
R-2-2% At 31 December 2010 666,939 9,282 528,331 67,188 1,271,740
tZA=1-H
E: Representing:
BE-E-ZEXH Proposed 2010 final and
REHNRE special dividends 38,052
Bt Others 29,136
67,188
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HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

22 Ht g A 22 Other income
—E-TF CZZETNE
2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEREERBEHRA Concessionaire sales service income 3,866 —
Hits Others 537 1,513
4,403 1,513
23 Bz (F51E) — 24 23 Other gains/(losses) - net

—E-TF CZZETNE
2010 2009
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000

HEEE TR Gain on disposal of leasehold land
T AN WS and land use rights — 19

HEWE KER Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
BEHWE S (EE) plant and equipment 5,762 (3,143)
HNEE Wiz (B518) SR8 Net exchange gain/(loss) 6,488 (304)
12,250 (3,428)
—z_mEEn
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BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

24 BEEE D MFX

X BEHERS  HERDHERAL
R-—BRRTEAX  2WWT :

24 Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
costs and general and administrative expenses are analysed

as follows:
“E2-Z2F Z—ZEZTNE
2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFEANREMBREER Raw materials and consumables used 1,180,292 1,099,770
BERN S Purchases of finished goods 433,414 386,274
NMIRSEER Processing and subcontracting charges 127,330 94,975
SELERY Manufacturing overheads 35,577 31,207
B X Sample expenses 17,190 16,206
HERmREER Changes in inventories of finished goods
FEER and work in progress 18,895 51,222
M WBERFZEINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 102,011 104,881
HELH R T Amortisation of leasehold land and
8 AR 88 land use rights 1,001 891
B EE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 8,856 8,855
BYEERE Impairment of intangible assets 54,000 15,050
AHEHESRH Impairment of available-for-sale
EERE financial assets — 5,870
& 812 7IB8 X (Hf & 25) Employment benefit expense (Note 25) 638,322 542,648
EE RTRRBEX Freight, delivery and insurance expenses 86,426 72,766
EEREMAX Royalties expense 25,463 36,898
HERE Sales commission 1,600 11,269
mEHERE ESK Marketing, advertising and
EERX promotion expenses 31,229 43,777
ERARAERE T Operating lease rental in respect of office
kEFHLEERE equipment and land and buildings
-REEETR — minimum lease payments 50,846 49,336
-gAHEE — contingent rent 11,656 14,974
ZE A £ Auditor’s remuneration 4,282 4,094
FE U iR FR (3 [E]) (Write-back of)/impairment of
/BB - R receivables, net
-ERESGERARRE — trade and bills receivable (4,253) 9,066
-2 ARk — deposits, prepayments and
H s B R IA other receivables 7,938 2,217
RE (®E) HE-F8 (Write-back of)/impairment of inventories, net (4,414) 439
HAF % Other expenses 159,769 150,194
BHBERAK BERDERAR  Total cost of sales, selling and distribution costs
U —MRITHRE B and general and administrative expenses 2,987,430 2,752,879

KEEBERARALA
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25 BEERAEX

HE_Z-—ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

25 Employment benefit expense

“E2-ZF CZ—ZETNE
2010 2009
TERT FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
I8 H& A Wages, salaries, commission,
ERERIEA allowances and bonus 597,419 507,911
EIREF Retirement benefit
- REMREE — defined contribution schemes 23,864 20,567
gl A Share-based compensation expense
-EREERE — share options granted —_ 322
BHRIR H AR &= Welfare and other benefits 17,039 13,848
638,322 542,648

(a) BINER KA — R E MG E

AEEZBEEBRERES MEHME
AREsE (AREE])  »h
ABYXTAEENREM/KS
B-RERBETE  F5EHE
I RHEEARBRHIMELAREN
EHIE BN EERASKEREA
"R -BEREEZENE ALK
LR%1,0008 T - MEMBOERE
BREMR - AEBEBRERINBRK
BREARBANEE -

BETEAENRERAL A&
EAREFEARETEIAER
EHRASHBELHER - *EH
BEEABREABUA (BEIE
e RERIEA) H8%Mm 5t & 4
o MAKEERABRANS%RE
28%fEH R - MERERS - KK
EREAARRARBNERNRY
Ef -BEREVRASFHEEEN
BRAREIXN2HENRE -

(a) Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employee are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. The Group has no further obligations for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for certain of its employees in Mainland China.
The Group’s employees make monthly contributions to
the schemes at approximately 8% of the relevant income
(comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus),
while the Group contributes 5% to 28% of such income
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible for
the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to
the retired employees.

—EB-BEEH
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T

HE=

=

25 BEERAEX @

(a) BRIKBRIKA - REHRTE

(%)

AEERERBECHBARGE
BESSMENKE - AREEA
B(EE)KHEHEESREERRR
WA(BEIE HE - ZERTE
AL) B916% M T B4R - AEBEERH
HOBARERKRBINERE -

BREMEBERS  AEEAUEH
ERRERNNEREE -

(b) EEM=

BE-2-ZH+-A=t-HL
FE  ARAZESENHENOT ¢

ZF+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution plans
(Continued)

The Group participates in a retirement scheme for
qualified employees of its subsidiary in Vietnam. Each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 16% of the
employees’ relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonus). The Group has no further
obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.

The Group has no material obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond contributions to the above schemes.

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:

FRERE

BAReTH HREME
EEHAR  Share-based
Employer’s compensation

BEEL EEREE contribution in respect of
ik #¢ Discretionary Housing to retirement share @t
ESpz Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowances  schemes options Total
TR ThER THET TR ThER TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITEE Executive directors

ZER Li Kwok Tung, Roy - 3,579 1,200 - 12 - 4,791
REY Lai Ching Ping - 3,028 1,200 - 12 - 4,240
RE Cheung Chi - 1,955 1,100 - 12 - 3,067
ZER Lee Kwok Leung - 1,652 900 - 12 - 2,564

BU#HTEE Independent non-executive

directors

53% Ma Ka Chun 100 - - - - - 100
Rt Chan Kwong Fai 100 = = = - - 100
BRE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - - - - - 150
BEL Wun Kwang 100 - - - - - 100
450 10,214 4,400 - 48 - 15,112

KEEBERARALA
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26 BEERAEX @ 25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) EEME @ (b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
BE-ZEEAF+ZRA=t+-HL The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
FE > ADRASEESHNMESUT : year ended 31 December 2009 is set out below:
FBERE

BAeHE HROEME
EEfH  Share-based
Employer’s compensation
BEEL EEEE contribution in respect of

ik #4¢ Discretionary Housing to retirement share @t
EEHA Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowances  schemes options Total

Tin TER TiEn Tin TER TiEn Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTES Executive directors
ZER Li Kwok Tung, Roy - 3,362 1,000 — 12 — 4,374
2EY Lai Ching Ping — 2,801 1,000 — 12 — 3,813
RE Cheung Chi — 1,821 900 — 12 — 2,733
ZER Lee Kwok Leung - 986 700 180 12 — 1878
BEE (H3E(a) Chow Chi Wai (Note (a)) - 43 - — 1 — 44
ERZE (HEb) Wong Wai Tak Victor (Note (b)) - 905 - — 6 322 1233
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
Ex% Ma Ka Chun 100 — — — - - 100
RxE Chan Kwong Fai 100 — — = = = 100
BRE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - - - = = 150
BEX Wun Kwang 100 - - - = = 100
450 9,918 3,600 180 55 322 14,525

M&E - Notes:
(a) BEBEXER-_TEAE-—A=T (a) Chow Chi Wai resigned on 29 January 2009.

RBBHE -
(b) BEEERER-_ZTZEAE-—A=F (b) Wong Wai Tak Victor was appointed on 29 January 2009

NBEZFE YR-ZZNELA and resigned on 8 July 2009.

B BHE ©
NEZE-B_—BE+-F=+—¢ No directors waived any emoluments during the year

LEE  BEESHEEAHE (= ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

ZTNF H) -
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25 BEERAEX @

(c) BBmREAHFAL

BE-Z-ZH+-A=1T-AL
FEARELEREHATEEN
Z(ZBENF  ZR)ES - ®E
WHESEHERLRDIH - FREN
SENEB - (ZEZRAE W

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 include four (2009: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining

B)ATHBENOT ¢ one individual (2009: two individuals) during the year
are as follows:
ZE-BF C—ETNE
2010 2009
TER FTERx
HK$’°000 HK$°000
K EEREER Basic salaries, housing allowances
H fth 2 85 and other allowances 1,260 2,421
T8 4L Discretionary bonuses 5,161 3,581
EIREF Retirement benefit
- REMRNEE — defined contribution schemes 12 12
6,433 6,014
FMAFUTEER : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-ZF CZEENE
2010 2009
e E (2 ) Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
1,000,00178 7t — HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 — 1
1,500,0007 T
4,500,00178 7t - HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 — 1
5,000,0007& 7T
6,000,00178 7t HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 1 —
6,500,0007& T

(d BE-Z-ZE+-A=+—HL
FE FRLRUEXNMEFEM
EERnEBReTALT  EAMA
RBEE A KK B 5B B
B(ZBZNF: 8) o

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2010, no
emoluments were paid by the Company to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

160 *EZEBERBRAA
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BhE WA R A 26 Finance income and costs
—E-ZTF CZZTTNE
2010 2009
FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AMEUW A Interest income from
- RITER — Bank deposits 7,366 4,478
—-HEMNBARER A — Other receivable from disposal of
= 4 9 H i FE WUIR 3K interest in a subsidiary
(B =E14) (Note 14) 401 1,566
- EFERGEEFH — Customers for extended credit terms 71 =
MEWA Finance income 7,838 6,044
A& AR Finance cost
-ROTEBEREX — Bank borrowings and overdrafts (3,567) (4,583)
MERANFE Net finance income 4,271 1,461
FEHEx 27 Income tax expense

ERANESHEREAEE AT EERE
MIZFE16.5% (ZZFZNE : 16.5%) 5T
REE-

ERE R REENHE QTR EB
ENAREFERE2BXH RN TE
M EEFER (CETNEF 1 25%) °
BREERS L ZSEPERNEELS
NEBELERFICELENHED
ARBERE BATER-TENFE
O EMETEREANEERSES
MER=FREFLR -

BN (BB R BRI RSN RF BB IE
ERAFEATERBENZAEEE
EMEBRERERAB RS -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

Subsidiaries and associates established and operated in
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China Enterprise
Income Tax at rate of 25% for the year (2009: 25%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, subsidiaries
and associates established in Mainland China as wholly
owned foreign enterprises or sino-foreign joint ventures are
entitled to full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax for the
first two years and a 50% reduction in Enterprise Income Tax
for the next three years, commencing no later than 2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

—EB-BEEH
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27 FiB8HBEX @ 27 Income tax expense (Continued)
BEMABRMBROFAEHAIIE The amounts of income tax expense charged to the

consolidated income statement represent:

—F-%F C-ZTTNF

2010 2009
FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ENHR 5%t — Current income tax —

BEMEH Hong Kong profits tax 35,088 35,715
mE A EERER Mainland China enterprise income tax 5,671 6,965
BINFTBEE Overseas income tax — 12

RBAEFERE (Over)/under provision
(B%) /T& in prior years (7,915) 26
32,844 42,718
ELEFTEH (HEE19) Deferred income tax (Note 19) 11,648 (12,149)
44,492 30,569

162 Xk E&BEERARLA
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27 FiIBHBEX @ 27 Income tax expense (Continued)
REERAERIEFNF EEFERE The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
AREHER GO METLIHEE N the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
MERSEMNEZRMOT : average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

entities as follows:

—E-25 CZEZEENE

2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEEEGEELNT Profit before income tax excluding share
B A B BR BB AR F of profits of associates 115,257 134,669
HORE 39 7 3t 3 AR B R Weighted average applicable domestic tax rates 16.7% 20.9%
LEAREREE BEX Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable
BRI ZEGTENFIE  to profits in the respective places/countries 19,299 28,138
HEFE . Tax effects of:
BREZRBUA Income not subject to tax (2,610) (2,966)
DEIEIE 3 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 14,852 15,284
BEREZEE Effect of tax concession (8,984) (22,065)
3 4% 7 SRR FE P 1S B A Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was
REEEFE recognised, net 27,060 12,923
MEBLRREZ DT Withholding tax on undistributed earnings of 2,619 —
AOBMBRFEMH subsidiaries and associates
RBEFEEEE (BZ) /T2 (Over)under provision in prior years (7,915) 26
HAith Others 171 (771)
BEHX Tax charge 44,492 30,569

ZE-ZFFH 163
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27 BRI X @

EEMETHER AR ELDEEMN
NFAREA DO ERRIEL R
B o B AR TRT AR EAR -

28 ARARREFE ARMGRA

RABRERSE AEEEF 101,571,000
BT (ZEENE 19,810,000 7T) 5t
AKRDRGFHEB/RA o

29 BREF

(a) B

FREXRBADRERDDRES
BEAELEHERH120,472,00058
T (ZEZAF : 121,539,000% 7T)
RFERERTEERMETHEN
1,268,400,000f% (= & & /i F
1,268,400,0008%) 5t &

27 Income tax expense (Continued)

The change in weighted average applicable domestic tax
rates, as stated above, is mainly caused by a change in mix
of profits earned by different group companies which are
subject to different tax.

28 Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$101,571,000 (2009: HK$19,810,000).

29 Earnings per share

(a) Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$120,472,000 (2009:
HK$121,539,000) and on the weighted average number
of approximately 1,268,400,000 (2009: 1,268,400,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—¥-¥F C-2EhE

2010 2009
AATREFE A Profit attributable to equity holders
L &R (F%&T) of the Company (HK$’000) 120,472 121,539
EBRTEBRDN Weighted average number of ordinary
IR FE & (T %) shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 1,268,400
FRERZEF GBAL) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 9.5 9.6

KEEBERARALA
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29 BEREAN @

29 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b) #58 (b) Diluted

BREERNIBRARKERE
HBEZEESBRMABRMETY
EBRTEBRBESNE - REBR
st 8 (MaE20) TRTHROAKE
—HEABBYENTER - A2
AREARTEBRERMDBED
ERBEFHFEUBEETRER
FEDBEARAROGREBHBHF
HhERE) RBENRGHE - £k
st ENRDBEEBRRITERR
BEMBBTHRODHEFHER -

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. Shares issuable under the share option schemes
(Note 20) are the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A
calculation is made in order to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market price of the
Company’s shares in the relevant periods) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

—g-2F -TIhF

2010 2009

KATREREE A Profit attributable to equity holders of
FE A& R (F % 7T) the Company (HK$’000) 120,472 121,539

INFEFE e #AT Weighted average number of ordinary
BHEE (FR) shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 1,268,400
BRERE (TR) Adjustment for share options ('000) 263 —

FREERR R MNE Weighted average number of ordinary
FHROHE (TR) shares for diluted earnings per share ('000) 1,268,663 1,268,400
FRE#EERER BN Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 9.5 9.6

—E-BEEH
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30 KRR

30 Dividends
—B-8¥F CZEBhE
2010 2009
TER TER
HK$’000 HK$000
EARERESREER2.451 Interim dividend paid of HK2.4 cents
(Z2ZRE  2.5%1l) (2009: HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share 30,442 31,710
ERERRESREBR.4B Special dividend paid of HK1.4 cents
(Z2ZhE  8|) (2009: Nil) per ordinary share 17,757 —
EEANREEREBR.2EWL Proposed final dividend of HK1.2 cents
(ZEZRE : 1.5840) (2009: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 15,221 19,026
EEBREEREER1.8E L Proposed special dividend of HK1.8 cents
(Z2Z0E  E) (2009: Nil) per ordinary share 22,831 —
86,251 50,736

R-E-—F=A+XBETHNER
L EZERRREREREER1.2E
W (ZE2hE 168 M) REFRE
1.88 M (ZZ2ZNF : &) - BEREM
ARZEVBERERARBAESRE
HEERREBE-_E——F+=8=
T-BLFEENRERARBA -

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

At a meeting held on 16 March 2011, the Board proposed a
final dividend of HK1.2 cents (2009: HK1.5 cents) and a
special dividend of HK1.8 cents (2009: Nil) per share. The
proposed dividends have not been reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as
an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31
December 2011.
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31 BEFMGHRE

(a) EEFERTYHIR

BR BT 18 8 A & Al
BTHIRERE
-BREEBH
- HELHR LT
1 FIRE 48 8
-ME BERIERE

-HEHEETHBR

T AR WS

-HENE  BBERRE

M (las) /B8

- RO #ME

-EBREERE

- HHEEH

EERME

-FE(RERD) RE

—FH8

— IR KRB - F

-BMERA-FH

- EiEBE X RER

-BR (k) BB -FE
EEESEE

-FE

-ERESRAKRFE

-BE - BARRK

H 1t FE Wbk 3R

-ERESRAKREE

— P & iR 3 K H At B8 A iR 3K

31 Cash generated from operations

(a) Reconciliation of cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
— Amortisation of intangible assets
— Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights
— Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
— Gain on disposal of leasehold
land and land use rights
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Share-based compensation
— Impairment of intangible assets
— Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets
— (Write-back)/impairment
of inventories, net
— Impairment of receivables, net
— Finance income — net
— Share of profits of associates
— Exchange (gain)/loss, net
Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
— Trade and bills receivable
— Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
— Trade and bills payable
— Accruals and other payables

—E-25 CZEZEENE
2010 2009
FTHER TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

117,293 137,584

8,856 8,855
1,001 891
102,011 104,881
= (19)
(5,762) 3,143
— 322
54,000 15,050
— 5,870
(4,414) 439
3,685 11,283
(4,271) (1,461)
(2,036) (2,915)
(6,488) 304
(29,451) 79,542

(6,192) 220,399

(23,625) 20,537
60,578  (118,773)
10,398 (29,789)

EERSES

Cash generated from operations

275,583 456,143

—EB-BEEH
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3N EEMBRE®W 31 Cash generated from operations (Continued)
(b) AREREXRD  HEHESL (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of
R EAEARE ¥ leasehold land and land use rights, and property,
BERRERERERE plant and equipment comprise

—E-ZF ZEZEENE
2010 2009
TET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

HERELHE Disposal of leasehold land and
T FAE land use rights:
R F E (i E6) Net book amount (Note 6) — 1,202
HEHS LK it Gain on disposal of leasehold land
155 FA 4 (9 L 2 and land use right — 19
HEHELTHE L Proceeds from disposal of leasehold land
EREMBRIE and land use rights — 1,221
HEME  HERRE Disposal of property,
plant and equipment:
R EFE (HEE7) Net book amount (Note 7) 6,529 6,192
HEMHE BER Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
mBWE (FE) plant and equipment 5,762 (3,143)
HEWME - #a Proceeds from disposal of property,
BERERE plant and equipment 12,291 3,049
(c) REERERT  WEKEL (c) In the cash flow statement, cash used in acquisition
AREANRE (NBREBANE of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired, represent
®) 1
—E-ZF ZEENE
2010 2009
TET TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

BANREREASZEY Cash and cash equivalents acquired

(Fff =£ 35) (Note 35) 2,774 -
EEAMRTESN (F3E35)  Bank overdrafts assumed (Note 35) (197) —
ENEERE Cash consideration paid (3,000) -

WEKBLAREEAMNIEE © Cash used in acquisition of subsidiaries,
MEREANRE net of cash acquired (423) =

168 *EZEBEERBRAA
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32 ZAREE 32 Contingent liabilities
RZB-ZHE+-_A=+—-H ££EH As at 31 December 2010, the Group had no material
TEREAFAEB(ZZZNE : 8) - contingent liabilities (2009: Nil).
33 AE-KKH 33 Commitments - Group
(a) BEARELE (a) Capital commitments
REER BRI NERBENER Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet
BT : date but not yet provided for is as follows:
—E-FF CZEEZNE
2010 2009
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M WEREE Property, plant and equipment
BRI AEREE Contracted but not provided for 6,859 9,072
A—ZE-—ZFF+-A=+—-H ' K As at 31 December 2010, the Group had commitments to
SEAFEDETRPEKERZD inject additional capital into certain subsidiaries
MEBABEABNIER  TELE established in Mainland China, totalling approximately
#148,150,0008 T (ZZZE N F : HK$48,150,000 (2009: HK$76,533,000).

(b)

76,533,00078 JT) °

REHERE (b) Operating lease commitments
FEEZRBRIAUHELCEHERR The Group leases various retail shops, offices,
HEZBZEE BAZE BER warehouses and office equipment under non-cancellable
PAEHRE - -HERBEFEMHR operating lease agreements. The leases have varying
BRETHRRREER - AEBRE terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. The future
THHECERHECRARBRERS aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
MEMNT cancellable operating leases are as follows:
ZE-EF CZETNE
2010 2009
TERT FTERr
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within one year 51,523 50,807
—FZRF Later than one year and not
later than five years 110,293 116,803
hE% Later than five years 38,392 57,002

200,208 224,612
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BAE-XEEHE@

(b) REHEAE @)

TR EREEREELRAAS A
B ITERERIECSHES (AR
&) (B AL ZSEME-K
BARREEZERAILHER
EEFHEEE  REAT AR
EEBEEREENMAE2EHE -

4 EEERERNRS

R-ZE—ZF5—-F-H AEEURE
1,337,000 T HEW# A (ER) BRAE
(T8 75]) 30%MHE - & » REBRHE
FREKERENKEH100%RH 2
70%° HERGZ Y BB AEELELY
WAWESE BENFERERZIE
HAERHBEE B 51,337,000 T c K&
BRI ERERIEMN,337,00058 T °
HWIRERERREHEALREE
AEERRNSEMHMRNT

33 Commitments — Group (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

The above lease commitments only include commitments
for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for
additional rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which
are to be determined generally by applying pre-
determined percentages to future sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional
rentals.

34 Transactions with non-controlling interests

On 2 January 2010, the Group disposed of 30% equity
interest in Rich Form (HK) Limited (“Rich Form”) at a
consideration of HK$1,337,000. Thereafter, the Group’s
equity interests in Rich Form and its subsidiaries was
decreased from 100% to 70%. The disposal of interests did
not result in loss of control of Rich Form. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in Rich Form on the
date of disposal was HK$1,337,000. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of HK$1,337,000. The
effect of changes in the ownership interest of Rich Form on
the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the
year is summarised as follows:

—g-8F -TTIhF

2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEEFERERN Carrying amount of non-controlling
iR H & interests disposed of (1,337) —

BFERES Consideration received from

WEE KB non-controlling interests 1,337 —
HERERANZE Effect of disposal within equity — =

TESNFUEEAFERESNHRE ©

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in
2009.
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35 £KSHt

35 Business combinations

R-ZZE-—ZF+tA—-8B A£EEHU
33,750,000 7t I & B # & B 75% K
Bo-NZA BHEENFEERER
MAFEERE  BRAKRBEENEE
#33,750,000/8 7T °c HAWEEATEL » &
SEEHSEREEERER W
U 28 SRR o

W B8 = 4 #9 75 % 33,750,0008 T D 5 A
RAGEHEEBEEENERSHERT
RNEWBERERRRBELRE

CERIBERAIRENRAEHR - T
BB/ ENEREERERER
BEENCARERGERUBRAANE®E
AT URREBSENFEERES
RBBRABHDFE-

On 1 July 2010, the Group acquired 75% of the equity
interests in Charmtech Group for HK$33,750,000. At that
date, the fair value of the net assets and liabilities in
Charmtech Group equaled zero and consequently there is
goodwill arising on the acquisition amounting to
HK$33,750,000. As a result of the acquisition, the Group
expects to broaden its product base and have an additional
source of revenue.

The goodwill of HK$33,750,000 arising from the acquisition is
attributable to acquired product base and economies of scale
expected from combining the operations of the Group and
Charmtech Group.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes. The following table summarises the
consideration paid/payable for Charmtech Group and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
recognised at the acquisition date, as well as the fair value at
the acquisition date of the non-controlling interest in
Charmtech Group.

—EB-BEEH
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35 ¥4 6@ 35 Business combinations (Continued)
TET
HK$’000
R1E : Consideration:
-BE — Cash 3,000
- HARE — Contingent consideration 30,750
#mRE Total consideration 33,750
HIWEEENER Acquisition-related costs (included in general
(BEREZ=-Z—Z% and administrative expenses in the consolidated
+ZA=+—HILEEFEE  income statement for the year ended
EHFBERAN—MRE 31 December 2010)
THAX) 312
ERBTRIEERE Recognised amounts of identifiable
REEENCRERAEE  assets acquired and liabilities assumed
REeEREEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,774
ME - BERSE Property, plant and equipment
(Bt £ 7) (Note 7) 5,639
AHLESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
CEXN) (Note 11) 780
7E Inventories 8,229
ERESRAREE Trade and bills receivable 9,690
e BARER Deposits, prepayments and
H 1 & W iR FX other receivables 426
BNEZEARZE Trade and bills payable (1,081)
iR R IR  Accruals and other payables (24,849)
MEFmEHERE Current income tax liabilities (1,381)
RITEX Bank overdrafts (197)
EEFEEE (F19) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 19) (30)
AHAFEEAE Total identifiable net assets —
FEBER Non-controlling interest —
e Goodwill (Note 8) 33,750

172 xEZ&BERARLA
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35 ¥HXESHm@

35 Business combinations (Continued)

FAREBZHBEMBD - F MR
EREBEEAEE-_ZE-TH+=A=
T-ALEENBRHEEHERNRER
BREAXNHABFRHARE - SHKH
“E-ZENBRBRERESHBENLERS
20,000,000 g °

FoBIREMNEEHEEBE S —
FERAZTHLEREEAEENSHBRE
1 % 7 48 %8 5K Z % 45,000,000 7% 7T+ Al
EREEERRRSBREBEEAX @R
SEEN -

FBEEREZRRRZENA FEE
EWENBERE - HMBEWRIIRRNA
F{E5426,00058 7T o T 25 H 4 FEUIR
RN EHWHEEA3,151,0008 T » H
2,725,000 JT T8 5T ML W E o

EHEENERRRETARER S/
SERKBEHANEERRZELEDN
FAEMBEEONAEEELEE -
AEBRUBRHE2AEEEGREARS -
RZZBE-ZE+-A=1+—-H HRA
REFEENEREERBRIES
B MRHEEEERIANSETETM

AEERKUBEHMZEEERREFE
ENLARIFEZRERZRE -

The contingent consideration arrangements include two
components. The first component requires an adjustment to
be made to the consideration in accordance with a specified
formula based on the consolidated profit after tax of
Charmtech Group for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
2010 consolidated profit after tax of Charmtech Group is
subject to a cap of HK$20,000,000.

The second component requires the selling shareholder of
Charmtech Group to refund to the Group in accordance with
a specified formula if the aggregate consolidated profit after
tax of Charmtech Group for the five years ending 30 June
2015 does not reach HK$45,000,000.

The fair value of the acquired trade and bills receivable was
approximate to the gross contractual amounts receivable.
The fair value of other receivables acquired is HK$426,000.
The gross contractual amount for other receivables due is
HK$3,151,000, of which HK$2,725,000 is expected to be
uncollectible.

The selling shareholder of Charmtech Group has
contractually agreed to indemnify the Group for any
additional tax liability falling on Charmtech Group resulting
from its operations and transactions prior to the acquisition
date. The indemnification asset was valued at nil by the
Group at the time of the acquisition. There has been no
change in the amount recognised for the indemnification
asset as at 31 December 2010, as there has been no change
in the range of outcomes or assumptions used to develop the
estimate of the liability.

The Group recognised the non-controlling interests at
proportionate share of Charmtech Group’s net assets at the
acquisition date which equalled zero.

—EB-BEEH
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- AERIEERFEENS - AN
HE-TNMEREERFAEASE
N UREHREHIBAREASE
E ARKBEES -

AEBHEEABRELZHEFMBLZA
7 Quinta Asia Limited (B R 2 7))
2B ZAARZE-ZEF+ZA=1
— BB A#58.64% 17 o KO F
EEF AQuinta Asia Limited 5 & & 1
NG

BRRALEEHBBERRPEMIED ATIH
BEN AEEHEBEELIGETUTE
ZRG

(a) HEE M

MELRAFERRR

— Umbro International
Limited

& 3EEt B MR HIEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZT-TF+-A=+—-HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

36 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by Quinta Asia Limited (the
immediate holding company), a company incorporated in the
British Virgins Islands, which owns approximately 58.64% of
the Company’s shares as at 31 December 2010. The
Company’s directors regard Quinta Asia Limited as being the
ultimate holding company.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions
were carried out with related parties:

(a) Sales of goods

—¥-¥F C-2EhE

2010 2009
THERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary
— Umbro International Limited
98,831 60,337

EmRerHENERHE -

KEEBERARALA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

Goods are sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties.



36 BEAIRZ @ 36 Related party transactions (Continued)
(b) BEER (b) Purchases of goods
—E-FF CZEEZNE
2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
M AR FERRKE Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
— Umbro International — Umbro International Limited 9,139 2,349
Limited
— Diadora S.p.A — Diadora S.p.A — 34
REEWEE AT Associate of the Group
—Fu Jin Bowker — Fu Jin Bowker Company
Company Limited Limited 161,125 161,901
170,264 164,284
ERREFHENERES - Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by both
parties.
(c) BERBEEEZE (c) Purchases of services and royalty
—E-TF CZZETNE
2010 2009
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt/ ENEEE Royalties paid/payable
MELRFERRER Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
— Umbro International — Umbro International Limited 25,319 36,898
Limited

4 Bt B 78 3R R Bt 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ELBRETHENERSM -

parties.

Royalties are paid on the basis mutually agreed by both

—EB-BEEH
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36 MEFRS @

(d) HE BEERRREHREL

36 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of

ZERER goods and services
—E2-Z2F Z—ZETNE
2010 2009
TER FTET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EWBELRE (B Receivable from a related party
REKRE ZIRRA) : (included in trade receivable):
MEARFERRE Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
— Umbro International Limited — Umbro International Limited 4,406 12,745
FEWEE R RIE Receivable from a related party
(BERES BEMRER (included in deposits, prepayments
HAt EUIRRA) ¢ and other receivables):
MEARFERRE Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
— Umbro International Limited — Umbro International Limited 5,087 5,726
ENBELRE (BER Payables to related parties
ERESKRRA) : (included in trade payable):
MEARFERRE Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
—Umbro International Limited — Umbro International Limited 936 1,590
REBKEE QT Associate of the Group
—Fu Jin Bowker — Fu Jin Bowker
Company Limited Company Limited 23,324 31,557
24,260 33,147
ENBELRE (BF Payable to related parties
REFIRRR (included in accruals and
Hi EFIRRA) ¢ other payables):
MEARFERRR Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
—Umbro International Limited — Umbro International Limited 6,258 7,421
RERSKHE Yuen Chi Leung
— BRI TR B — Pre-acquisition dividend payable 2,764 —
BB EmEBEEM — Consideration payable for acquisition
KB (F7E35) of Charmtech Group (Note 35) 30,750 —
33,514 —
39,772 7,421

176 kxEZ&BERARLA
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6HEEFRS @) 36 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) &, BESERRBREFREL (d) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of

ZERER @ goods and services (Continued)
FERE (ENRERTERER All amounts except for amounts payable to Yuen Chi
MBEEARER-RESEEDH Leung are unsecured and payable within normal trade
WXEAT o credit terms.
BNREREENEHRAERA The balances due to Yuen Chi Leung are unsecured,
RERER-ZE——F+ZHA=+ interest-free and payable on or before 31 December
—BEZAEE - 2011.
(e) REBERNER (e) Loan from a related party
—E-TF CZZENFE
2010 2009
FET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEBLRFERRER Non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries
-RER — Yuen Chi Leung 7,500 —
ERABREKE £ERERRE The loan is unsecured, interest free and only repayable
HEASE-HERKEZR RESZ on the unanimous demand of Yuen Chi Leung and the
HEMERREBEREERREE Group, which is to be repaid to both shareholders in their
A EL B F LB E - respective proportions of outstanding shareholders’ loans
at the time of repayment.

(f) EKHELRRE () Amounts due to subsidiaries
EAHMBARARESNAEEKA & Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
EREREHGEE - and repayable on demand.

(g) TEEBEAEMS (9) Key management compensation

—E-FF CZEEZNE

2010 2009

TERT TET

HK$000  HK$'000

e BARER Salaries, bonus and allowances 18,098 18,352

RIREAR Retirement benefits

- RE MG E — defined contribution schemes 84 98
A% 10 3R B B 2 Share-based compensation expense

- RitBERE — share options granted — 322

18,182 18,772
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EARERT  BRXEZSEMIEN  UATHE

BEBEUTHESE

EE=3 AQAEEEE

[Ed] EHBEERAT &2
A ET%RENKB AR

[EEEE] EHMRENBRQR

=3 ARARAESE

(AT ] KEEBEERERLA
RZEZERFE+ZHF+=
REHEHEIMA LI
ZHREERAA

[BIE AT tHRAFEEE

[Diadora%®] Diadora S.p.A.REHE D

3

[Diadora HK] Diadora Hong Kong
Limited » ADiadora S.p.A.
NEEHBE AR

[DiadoraEfm] FEIEDiadorafIZWEMR -
WRESE PEAERR
M 5 85

[Diadora Diadora S.p.A. * REKXF

S.p.A.] HAMELzAR 0 KEZ
TERR (REFEHR)

[EZ%] KATES

(B BN 8

NG FEARE RN BFER
REHE

[RE&EE] KA REMEB AR

[l BEBLTERER

[& %] HEBFBERTHE

KEEBEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the

following expression have the following meanings:

“Board”

“Charmtech”

“Charmtech Group”

“Company”

“Connected Person”

“Diadora Group”

“Diadora HK”

“Diadora Products”

“Diadora S.p.A.”

“Director(s)”
“EU”

“Greater China”
“Group” or “we” or
“our” or “us”

“HKS”

“Hong Kong”

the board of Directors of the Company

Charmtech Industrial Limited, a 75%-
owned subsidiary of the Company

Charmtech and its subsidiaries

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited, an
exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on
13 December 2005

has the meaning ascribed to it under
the Listing Rule

Diadora S.p.A. and its subsidiaries

Diadora Hong Kong Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Diadora S.p.A.

products bearing the Diadora trademark
and distributed in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau

Diadora S.p.A. (under liquidation), a

company incorporated in Italy, a

substantial shareholder of Winor
the director(s) of the Company
the European Union

Mainland China, Macau, Hong Kong
and Taiwan region

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency
of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in the PRC
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ARARABROBEBEERE “Listing Date” the date of commencement of dealings
ENMEH B-ZEAREF in our Shares on the Main Board, which
AARB(EHE) is on Wednesday, 6 September 2006
ERBEXRGHMERD A “Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of
#HELImHAA Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited
X 3 B 3T P Bl 3 AR AT AR B “Main Board” the stock market operated by the Stock
RIBRENRED S (TE Exchange prior to the establishment of
FHREME)  REFEET the Growth Enterprise Market of the
BT £l 2 A [2) B P B A2 A S Stock Exchange (excluding the options
g (AR4ER EWMAEE market) and which stock market
% 2 B Bl 4R ) continues to be operated by the Stock
Exchange in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(for avoidance of doubt, the Main Board
excludes the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange)

[EREBEER] RRELEEANER B “OEM” acronym for original equipment
THEEIOHMEERR manufacturer, a business that
BUREARNENERDR manufactures or purchases from other
B omMiepBBHE= manufacturers and possibly modifies
BE goods or equipment for branding and

resale by others

[BEE] ERBMH2.28B THBRER “Offer Price” the offer price of HK$2.28 per share

[BRAMER RAQARLTA@ESE “Pre-IPO Share the options granted by the Company to

BB AR AE ] BETEERENBRE Option(s)” certain employees, among others, prior
to the listing of the Company

[FElS HEAREME  TEE “PRC” or the People’s Republic of China,

[FEXE] BE BRMEREE “Mainland China” excluding Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan
AR TEEEEBARY “RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

[z 7 ] KAARAREREE “Share(s)” the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the
0.107% T 19 iz 17 share capital of the Company

[R5 KARRE “Shareholders” shareholders of the Company

[ B 22 B ERBERIMERA “Stock Exchange” the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

B REERERGEM

Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of

ERARANZENE LA Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited
[(REFTEE] REFTREWBAA “T&S Group” T&S HK and its subsidiaries
[REFIT] REFTERAT AL “T&S HK” Team & Sports Limited, a 60%-owned

REB60%ERENHE AT subsidiary of the Company

ZE-ZFFH 179
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[TSG BVI] TSG (BVI) Limited @ Az
BELZBHEIMA LN

B RBEZIERR
TSG BVIR H KB 1 F
RERK(BK)BRA
B REBEMALZA
8 BTSGBVIZZEME
D E

[RESE]
[REBR]

Umbro International & &
NG|

[Umbro%E |

[Umbro
D]

Umbro International
Limited (Umbro% B /1 &
H-REELQR) BXEF
THILABRA-ZEEL
E-_ANBHDETZE
LEXRPEHER D H
UmbrofE @ B #ff Umbro&
B AUmbroZEm @ T H
K UmbroB & i &

[Umbro Umbro International
Internationall Limited = A B & & 3L
ZAR o REFTZEE

[

KEFITEUmbrofk B
& Umbro Licensing
Limited® = 2T —-F 1A
“tHEBAYNEEER
- UEHEREAHE
K2 8UmbroE @

B Umbrom k& » A A&
EERE Umbro7 8 1 &
DENETESRREAM
Em

EFBRERE
EERERARARAT
RN BEHEET5%RE R B

nE

[Umbro
BEERHE]

[UmbroZ & |

o
=

i
i

[(REXHE]

[KE ]

RERHEMBLR

XEERAERLE AKX
DRI R 100% & #Y
BB 2R

[kEEE] XKEREMBLF

KEEBEERARLA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

“TSG BVI”

“TSG Group”

“TSG International”

“Umbro Group”

“Umbro Distributor
Agreement”

“Umbro International”

“Umbro Licence
Agreement”

“Umbro Products”

s

“Win Sports”

“Win Sports Group”

“Winor”

“Winor Group”

TSG (BVI) Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, a substantial
shareholder of Win Sports

TSG BVI and its subsidiaries

TSG International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, being a
wholly owned subsidiary of TSG BVI

Umbro International and its subsidiaries

the distributor agreement dated 8
February 2007 and entered between
Umbro International Limited, one of the
members of the Umbro Group, and T&S
HK in respect of the sale and
distribution of Umbro Products in the
Greater China and purchases of Umbro
Products from the Umbro Group,
superseding the Umbro Licence
Agreement

Umbro International Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, a
substantial shareholder of T&S HK

the licence agreement entered into
between T&S HK and Umbro Licensing
Limited, a member of the Umbro Group,
on 24 May 2001 in respect of the sale
and distribution of Umbro Products in
the PRC and Hong Kong

a selected range of sportswear and
other products bearing the Umbro brand
and distributed by the Group pursuant
to the Umbro Distributor Agreement

the United States of America

Win Sports Limited, a 75%-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Win Sports and its subsidiaries

Winor International Company Limited,
being an indirect 100%-owned
subsidiary of our Company

Winor and its subsidiaries
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